
 EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION  
AGENDA  

Board of Directors Meeting  
Bay Street Conference Room   

5616 Bay Street 
 Emeryville, CA 94608 

April 18th, 2019 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Public Comment 
 

3. Approval of the Minutes of the March 21st, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting 
(Attachment) 

 
4. Executive Directors Report 

A. Status Update on EGR Bus Yard at Mandela Parkway 
i. Oakland Planning Commission Approval & Next Steps (Attachment) 

ii. Caltrans Lease Agreement & Next Steps (Attachment) 
iii. MacArthur Maze Freight Corridor Project  

 
5. Business Items 

A. Review and Accept the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial 
Statements for year ending December 31, 2018 (Attachment) 

B. Review and Authorize signing and filing of the ETMA’s 2018 Federal Tax 
Return and State Annual Information Return (Attachment) 

C. Review of Draft 2018 Annual Report  
 

6. Suggestions/Requests from Board Members 
 

7. Confirm date of Next Meeting - May 16th, 2019 
 

8. Adjournment   

Chair 
Geoff Sears, Wareham 
Development 

Vice Chair 
Betsy Cooley, At-Large 
Residential Member 

Secretary  
Bobby Lee, At-Large 
Residential Member 
 
Treasurer 
Andrew Allen 
At-Large Business Member 

Directors 
Julie Cai,  
Bay Street 
 
Peter Schreiber,  
Pixar 

Colin Osborne 
At-Large Employer 
Member 
 
Ron Silberman, 
At-Large Business Member 

Kassandra Kappelos 
Public Market 
 
 

 



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORATATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 
ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 

Board of Directors Meeting 
March 21st, 2018 

 
1. Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 9:15AM by Geoff Sears. 
Directors Present:  Geoff Sears, Betsy Cooley, Bobby Lee, Peter Schreiber, Colin Osbourn, Julie Cai, 
Kassandra Kappelos 
Staff Present: Roni Hattrup, Mary Grinbergs 
Others: Dina Keena, City of Emeryville 
 

2. Public Comment 
 

3. New Director Appointment 
Roni introduced Julie Cai from Bay Street and Kassandra Kappelos from Public Market as the new 
Director Appointments to the Board.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes of the January 17th, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting (Attachment) 
Betsy motioned for approval.  Peter seconded the motion. 
 
This item was approved by a unanimous vote. 
AYE: 7 
NAY: 0 
ABSTAIN:  
 

5. Executive Director’s Report 
A. Status update on EGR Bus Yard at Mandela Parkway 

i. Oakland Planning Commission – April 3rd  
Roni reminded the Board of the upcoming Planning Commission meeting to be held at 
the City of Oakland Council Chambers. 
   

ii. MacArthur MacArthur Maze Freight Corridor Project (Attachment) 
Roni relayed concerns regarding the schedule of the Caltrans Maze project. She noted 
the Caltrans comment period was delayed one month, which would likely delay their 
decision of the preferred alternative, which was previously targeted for September 
2019.     
  
Roni also informed the Board of the upcoming community meeting, scheduled for April 
10th, to discuss the project and the anticipated impact to Emeryville.  Roni further noted 
that the meeting would be held at the Emeryville Center for Community Life.  
 

 
6. Business Items  

A. Review of Draft Emery Go-Round Fleet Transitions Plan  
Roni provided a status of the fleet transition plan and made note of the TMA’s budget limitations 
to acquire new, more costly, alternative fuel or hybrid vehicles.  Roni proposed a goal to 
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transition up to 20% of the Emery Go Round fleet to alternative fuel/hybrid vehicles by year 
2030.   Roni also proposed a commitment for the TMA to apply for funding grants, in an effort to 
achieve the goal.   Roni further noted that the current fleet acquisition plan includes a 
designation of $1.25 million dollars of current ETMA funding to use as a local match, should it be 
required.    
 
The Board voted to adopt the clean fleet transition plan and asked staff to research options for 
alternative fuel vehicles at the time of each vehicle acquisition.   
 
Betsy motioned for approval to adopt the clean fleet transition plan.  Bobby seconded the 
motion. 
 
This item was approved by a unanimous vote. 
AYE: 7 
NAY: 0 
ABSTAIN:  

 
B. Appoint Audit Committee  

The audit subcommittee meeting is scheduled for April 17th.  Pete Schreiber, Julie Cai and 
Kassandra Kappelos volunteered to participate on the committee. 
 
Peter motioned for approval.  Kassandra seconded the motion. 
 
This item was approved by a unanimous vote. 
AYE: 7 
NAY: 0 
ABSTAIN: 0 

 
C. Review of Potential Service to Emeryville Center for Community Life  

Roni presented a proposal to add service to the ECCL and EBI.  Two new stops would be added to 
the North Hollis route.  Roni noted that there is no current service to the schools and noted the 
service modification could potentially boost ridership on the route and also provide a transit 
option for students.  Roni proposed the modification be tested as a pilot project and asked for 
approval of the general concept.   
 
Bobby motioned to approve the general concept, with Roni to research details of impact to City 
assessments and if it requires Counsel approval. Peter seconded the motion. 
 
This item was approved by a unanimous vote. 
AYE: 7 
NAY: 0 
ABSTAIN: 0 
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D. Consider Approval of Revised Membership Participation Agreement Boilerplate (Attachment) 
Roni presented the proposed changes to the membership participation agreement, which include 
modifications to the fee structure to align with the PBID assessment structure.   
 
Bobby motioned for approval. Betsy seconded the motion. 
 
This item was approved by a unanimous vote. 
AYE: 7 
NAY: 0 
ABSTAIN: 0 

 
E. Review and Consider Approval of Amendment #4 to Prof Services Agree. w/Damono Design for 

continued Website Maintenance Services (Attachment) 
Roni presented Amendment #4 to the website maintenance agreement with Damono Design to 
continue website support services on the current Emery Go Round website through the end of 
the year.     
 
Betsy motioned for approval. Geoff seconded the motion. 
 
This item was approved by a unanimous vote. 
AYE: 7 
NAY: 0 
ABSTAIN: 0 
 

F. Adopt Resolution 19-01 to Establish the Date and Time of the Annual Membership Meeting 
(Attachment) 
Roni proposed the date of May 16th, 2019 at 9:00AM, for the Annual Membership meeting.   Roni 
also noted that she would be preparing for the election of Directors for both business and 
employer members. 
 
Betsy motioned for approval. Geoff seconded the motion. 
 
This item was approved by a unanimous vote. 
AYE: 7 
NAY: 0 
ABSTAIN: 0 
 

7. Suggestions  
None 
 

8. Confirm Date of Next Meeting 
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The meeting date of April 18th at 9:15AM was confirmed. 
 

9. Adjournment  
The meeting was adjourned at 10:43AM. 
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(Lease Area No.    ) 
(Account No.     ) 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
AIRSPACE LEASE 

 
THIS LEASE, dated       is by and between the STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter called "Landlord," and  
         , hereinafter called "Tenant." 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 

 For and in consideration of the rental and of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth 
to be kept and performed by the Tenant, Landlord hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant hereby leases 
from Landlord the Premises herein described for the term, at the rental and subject to and upon all of 
the terms, covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth. 
 
ARTICLE 1.  SUMMARY OF LEASE PROVISIONS 
 
Landlord:  California Department of Transportation 
 
Tenant:          
 
Premises:       located in the City of      County of 
   , State of California, and more particularly described in Article 2. 
 
Lease Term    , commencing     and expiring on     
 
Monthly Rent:  $     (Article 4) 
 
Security Deposit:  $     (Article 18) 
 
Use:        (Article 5)  
 
Comprehensive General Liability Insurance:  $5,000,000.  (Article 10) 
 Insurance provider:          . 
 Policy number:          . 
Business Automobile Liability Insurance: $1,000,000.  (Article 10) 
 Insurance provider:          . 
 Policy number:          . 
Garage Keeper's Legal Liability Insurance: $1,000,000.  (Article 10) 
 Insurance provider:          . 
 Policy number:          . 
Workers' Compensation Insurance: $1,000,000. (Article 10) 
 Insurance provider:          . 
 Policy number:          . 
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Addresses for Notices:  (Article 19) 
 
To Landlord: 
 
Department of Transportation 
Right of Way Airspace Development MS 11 
US Mail:  PO Box 23440, Oakland, CA 94623-0440 
Street Address:  111 Grand Avenue, 13th floor Oakland, CA 94612-3771 
 
To Tenant:              
           

         
 Email:                 Phone:    
 

References in this Article 1 to the other Articles are for convenience and designate other Articles 
where references to the particular item contained in the Summary of Lease Provisions appear.  Each 
reference in this Lease to the Summary of Lease Provisions contained in this Article 1 shall be construed 
to incorporate all of the terms provided under the Summary of Lease Provisions.  In the event of any 
conflict between the Summary of Lease Provisions and the balance of the Lease, the latter shall control. 
 
ARTICLE 2.  PREMISES 
 

Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, for the term, at the 
rent, and upon the covenants and conditions hereinafter set forth, that certain Premises known as Freeway 
Lease Area No.   , situated in the City of     and County of 
   , said land or interest therein being shown on the map or plat marked "Exhibit A," 
attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all those portions of the above-described Premises occupied by the 
supports and foundations of the existing structure. 

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM all that portion of the Premises above a horizontal plane 5 
feet below the underside of the superstructure of the existing structure, which plane extends to a line 10 
feet, measured horizontally, beyond the outermost protrusion of the superstructure of the structure. 

California Civil Code Section 1938 requires commercial landlords to disclose to tenants whether 
the property being leased has undergone inspection by a Certified Access Specialist ("CASp") to 
determine whether the property meets all applicable construction-related accessibility requirements. 
Tenant is hereby advised that the Premises have NOT been inspected by a CASp. 

A CASp can inspect the subject premises and determine whether the subject Premises comply 
with all of the applicable construction-related accessibility standards under state law. Although state law 
does not require a CASp inspection of the subject Premises, the commercial property owner or lessor may 
not prohibit the lessee or tenant from obtaining a CASp inspection of the subject Premises for the 
occupany or potential occupancy of the lessee or tenant, if requested by the lessee or tenant. The parties 
shall mutually agree on the arrangement for the time and manner of the CASp inspection, the payment 
of the fee for the CASp inspection, and the cost of making any repairs necessary to correct violations of 
construction-related accessibility standards within the Premises. Any CASp inspection shall be 
conducted in compliance with reasonable rules in effect at the Premises with regard to such inspections 
and shall be subject to Landlord’s prior written consent. Tenant shall be responsible for all costs 
associated with a CASp inspection. 
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ARTICLE 3.  TERM 

The term of this Lease shall be for , commencing 
, and expiring on . 

ARTICLE 4.  RENT 

4.1 Minimum Monthly Rent 

Tenant shall pay to Landlord as minimum monthly rent, without deduction, setoff, prior notice, 
or demand, the sum of $    per month, in advance on the first day of each month, commencing 
on the Term commencement date and continuing during the term.  Minimum monthly rent for the second 
rent year and beyond shall be adjusted pursuant to section 4.2 below, and shall be subject to reevaluation 
as provided for within this Article. 

Minimum monthly rent for the first month or portion of it shall be paid on the Term 
commencement date.  Minimum monthly rent for any partial month shall be prorated at the rate of 1/30th 
of the minimum monthly rent per day.  All rent checks shall have printed on their face the following 
tenancy reference number     and shall be paid to Landlord at the following address: 
State of California, Department of Transportation, Attention: Cashier, P. O. Box 168019, Sacramento, 
CA 95816-8019.   

4.2 Adjustment to Rent 

The minimum monthly rent provided for in Section 4.1 shall be subject to adjustment as of the 

first day of the third year of the lease term and every year thereafter, either via a fixed minimum 4% 
increase (rounded to closest $5) or via an amount derived from a reevaluation which may occur at 
Landlord’s option per Section 4.4.  Table 4.2.1 below provides the Tenant’s minimum rent obligation 
for the 11 years of the term, unless a new fair market rent is derived via reevaluation per Section 4.4 
which will supersede the pre-calculated amounts within Table 4.2.1.  If a new rent determined via a 
reevaluation does not take effect on the 6th, 11th and/or 16th year of the term, then the rent will continue 
to adjust annually at the set 3% fixed amount until a reevaluation, if any, takes place.  Landlord shall not 
be required to provide any further notice to Tenant regarding annual rent adjustments during the Lease 
term. 

Table 4.2.1 

Lease Year  Period Rent 

Year 1 
Year 2 
Year 3 
Year 4 
Year 5 
Year 6 
Year 7 
Year 8 
Year 9 
Year 10 
Year 11 
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4.3 Landlord's Compensation upon Assignment, Transfer or Sublease of Tenant's Leasehold 
 

(a)  In the event that Tenant voluntarily assigns, transfers or subleases any of Tenant's rights in 
the Premises, Tenant shall pay to Landlord compensation in connection with the transaction in an amount 
equal to fifty percent (50%) of any and all consideration, whether in present payments or in future 
payments, which Tenant receives from an assignee, transferee or subtenant in excess of the amount of 
rent Tenant is obligated to pay to Landlord under this Lease. 

(b) Payment by Tenant of the amount of compensation required under this Section 4.3 is a 
condition to Landlord's giving its consent to any assignment, transfer or sublease under Section 16.1, 
and Landlord may withhold its consent to any such assignment, transfer or sublease until this 
compensation has been paid.  In addition, before Landlord gives its consent to any such transaction, 
Tenant shall deliver to the assignee, transferee or subtenant a written summary of all sums due and owing 
to Landlord under this section and shall deliver to Landlord a written acknowledgement by the assignee, 
transferee or subtenant that said person affirms that the sums are due and owing to Landlord and that 
said person accepts responsibility for ensuring that such sums are paid directly to Landlord. 

 
4.4 Reevaluation of Minimum Monthly Rent 
 

Landlord, at its sole discretion, expressly reserves the right to reevaluate the minimum monthly 
rent three times during the term of this Lease.  During the fifth, tenth, and fifteenth years from the date 
of the commencement of the initial term, or as soon thereafter as Landlord desires, a fair market lease 
rate may be determined in the manner set forth below and shall be established as the minimum monthly 
rent commencing on the start of the 6th, 11th, 16th years of the term or as soon thereafter upon the running 
of the notice period as provided for below.  

The minimum monthly rent established by this section shall continue to be subject to the 3% 
annual adjustment established in Section 4.2.  Table 4.2.1 shall be amended to reflect the new minimum 
monthly rent for the remaining Lease term pursuant to the reevaluation. 
 The term "fair market lease rate" means the highest lease rate estimated in terms of money which 
the leased premises, excluding improvements constructed by Tenant thereon, would bring if exposed for 
lease in the open market, with a reasonable time allowed to find a tenant, leasing with full knowledge of 
the purpose and uses to which the leased premises is being put and the restrictions on use contained in 
Article 5 of this lease. 
 The parties intend to establish the fair market lease rate through negotiation.  At least 90 days 
prior to implementation of a new reevaluated lease rate, Landlord shall notice Tenant of its intent to 
reevaluate the rent, and shall propose to Tenant a new fair market lease rate.  In an effort to encourage 
productive negotiations, if Landlord and Tenant have not mutually agreed upon the fair market lease rate 
for the Premises 60 days after the notice, then Landlord shall unilaterally set the fair market lease rate 
based on data collected from a rent survey of reasonably comparable Caltrans and non-Caltrans owned 
properties and shall use the highest per square foot rate paid by a tenant for a comparable property with 
a comparable use within approximately a one mile radius of the subject Premises.   

If Landlord unilaterally sets the fair market lease rate, Tenant shall have the option to accept the 
new lease rate or Tenant may object to the new lease rate and elect to terminate the Lease with no penalty 
by providing to Landlord a 30 Day Notice of its intent to Quit.  Such termination notice must be provided 
by Tenant to Landlord in writing.  Tenant’s election to Quit shall place the Tenant in the same legal 
position as if the entire term of this Lease had run its course and expired.  Tenant shall have no further 
rights other than those expressed within this Lease relevant to the natural expiration of the term of the 
Lease.  In the case that Tenant does not provide notice of intent to terminate, the new fair market lease 
rate established by Landlord shall become effective on the first day of the month following Landlord’s 
90 day notice of its intent to implement the new reevaluated lease rate.  For example, if Landlord provides 
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notice to Tenant of its proposed new rent on February 1, 2021, the new rent would take effect on May 1, 
2021.  If Tenant fails to pay the new fair market lease rate, Landlord shall treat Tenant’s failure to pay 
the new lease rate as a material breach. 

 
4.5 Reevaluation on Change in Use 
 
 Landlord expressly reserves the right to establish a new minimum monthly rent as a condition to 
Landlord’s approval of any use of the Premises not specifically permitted by Section 5.1 and as a 
condition to any amendment to or changes in the uses permitted by that section.  
 
4.6 Reevaluation on Transfer 
 
 Landlord expressly reserves the right to establish a new minimum monthly rent as a condition 
to Landlord’s specific approval of any transfer, or assignment of this Lease or any subletting of all or 
any portion of the Premises; provided, however, that Tenant shall have the right from time to time, 
upon notice to, but without the consent of Landlord, to transfer this Lease or use and occupancy of all 
or any of the Premises to any person or entity that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is 
under common control with Tenant for any or all of the uses permitted under this Lease without any 
such new minimum monthly rent and without obtaining Landlord’s consent. 
 
ARTICLE 5.  USE 
 
5.1 Specified Use 
 

The Premises shall be used and occupied by Tenant only and exclusively for the purpose of  
         and for no other purpose whatsoever 
without obtaining prior written consent of Landlord and the concurrence of the Federal Highway 
Administration.  Landlord expressly reserves the right to establish a new minimum monthly rent as a 
condition to Landlord’s approval of any use of the leased premises not specifically permitted by this 
section. 
 
5.2 Condition of Premises 
 

Tenant hereby accepts the Premises in the AS-IS condition existing as of the date of the 

execution hereof, subject to all applicable zoning, municipal, county, state and federal laws, ordinances 
and regulations governing and regulating the use of the Premises, and accepts this Lease subject thereto 
and to all matters disclosed thereby and by any exhibits attached hereto.  Tenant acknowledges that 
neither Landlord nor any agent of Landlord has made any representation or warranty with respect to the 
condition of the Premises or the suitability thereof for the conduct of Tenant’s business, nor has Landlord 
agreed to undertake any modification, alteration or improvement to the Premises except as provided in 
this Lease. 

Except as may be otherwise expressly provided in this Lease, the taking of possession of the 
Premises by Tenant shall in itself constitute acknowledgement that the Premises are in good and 
Tenantable condition, and Tenant agrees to accept the Premises in its presently existing condition "as 
is", and that the Landlord shall not be obligated to make any improvements or modifications thereto 
except to the extent that may otherwise be expressly provided in this Lease. 

Tenant represents and acknowledges that it has made a sufficient investigation of the conditions 
of the Premises existing immediately prior to the execution of this Lease (including investigation of the 
surface, subsurface and groundwater for contamination and hazardous materials) and is satisfied that the 
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Premises will safely support the type of improvements, if any, to be constructed and maintained by 
Tenant upon the Premises, that the Premises is otherwise fully fit physically and lawfully for the uses 
required and permitted by this Lease and that Tenant accepts all risks associated therewith. 

Tenant acknowledges that (1) Landlord has informed Tenant prior to the commencement of the 
term of this Lease that the Landlord does not know nor has reasonable cause to believe that any release 
of any hazardous material has come to be located on or beneath the Premises; (2) prior to the 
commencement of the term of this Lease, the Landlord has made available to Tenant, for review and 
inspection, records in the possession or control of the Landlord which might reflect the potential 
existence of hazardous materials on or beneath the Premises; (3) Landlord has provided Tenant access 
to the Premises for a reasonable time and upon reasonable terms and conditions for purposes of providing 
to Tenant the opportunity to investigate, sample and analyze the soil and groundwater on the Premises 
for the presence of hazardous materials; (4) by signing this Lease Tenant represents to Landlord that, 
except as otherwise may be stated on “Exhibit C” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein, Tenant does not know nor has reasonable cause to believe that any release of hazardous material 
has come to be located on or beneath the Premises and (5) with respect to any hazardous material which 
Tenant knows or has reasonable cause to believe has come or will come to be located on or beneath the 
Premises, Tenant has listed the hazardous material on attached “Exhibit C” and agrees promptly to 
commence and complete the removal of or other appropriate remedial action regarding the hazardous 
material at no cost or expense to Landlord and in full compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, 
permits, approvals and authorizations.  The phrase “hazardous material,” as used herein, has the same 
meaning as that phrase has in Section 5.7 of this Lease. 

Tenant agrees that, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Lease, Tenant is solely 
responsible without any cost or expense to the Landlord to take all actions necessary, off as well as on 
the Premises to improve and continuously use the Premises as required by this Lease and in compliance 
with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 
5.3 Compliance with Law 
 

Tenant shall not use the Premises or permit anything to be done in or about the Premises which 
will in any way conflict with any law, statute, zoning restriction, ordinance or governmental rule or 
regulation or requirements of duly constituted public authorities now in force or which may hereafter be 
in force, or with the requirements of the State Fire Marshal or other similar body now or hereafter 
constituted, relating to or affecting the condition, use or occupancy of the Premises.  The judgment of 
any court of competent jurisdiction or the admission of Tenant in any action against Tenant, whether 
Landlord be a party thereto or not, that Tenant has violated any law, statute, ordinance or governmental 
rule, regulation or requirement, shall be conclusive of that fact as between Landlord and Tenant.  Tenant 
shall not allow the Premises to be used for any unlawful purpose, nor shall Tenant cause, maintain or 
permit any nuisance in, on or about the Premises.  Tenant shall not commit or suffer to be committed 
any waste in or upon the Premises. 
 
5.4 Compliance with Requirements of Lease Application 
 

By executing this Lease, Tenant certifies that all the statements made in the Lease Application 
for this Lease are true and correct.  If at any time during the term of this Lease Landlord discovers that 
any statement Tenant made in the Airspace Lease Application is false, this Lease may be terminated 
immediately by Landlord and be of no further force or effect. 

 
5.5 Petroleum Products 
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Tenant shall not install facilities for, nor operate on the Premises, a gasoline or petroleum supply 
station. Tenant shall not permit on the Premises any vehicles used or designed for the transportation or 
storage of gasoline or petroleum products. Tenant shall also not permit on the Premises any bulk storage 
of gasoline or petroleum products. 
 
5.6 Explosives and Flammable Materials 
 

The Premises shall not be used for the manufacture of flammable materials or explosives, or for 
any storage of flammable materials, explosives or other materials or other purposes deemed by Landlord 
to be a potential fire or other hazard to the transportation facility.  The operation and maintenance of the 
Premises shall be subject to regulations of Landlord so as to protect against fire or other hazard impairing 
the use, safety and appearance of the transportation facility.  The occupancy and use of the Premises 
shall not be such as will permit hazardous or unreasonably objectionable smoke, fumes, vapors or odors 
to rise above the surface of the traveled way of the transportation facility. 
 
5.7 Hazardous Materials 
 

Tenant shall at all times and in all respects comply with all federal, state and local laws, 
ordinances and regulations, including, but not limited to, the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 
U.S.C. section 1251, et seq.), Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. section 6901, et seq.), 
Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C. section 300f, et seq.), Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. 
section 2601, et seq.), Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. section 7401, et seq.), Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. section 9601, et seq.), Safe Drinking Water and 
Toxic Enforcement Act (California Health and Safety Code section 25249.5, et seq.), other applicable 
provisions of the California Health and Safety Code (section 25100, et seq., and section 39000, et seq.), 
California Water Code (section 13000, et seq.), and other comparable state laws, regulations and local 
ordinances relating to industrial hygiene, environmental protection or the use, analysis, generation, 
manufacture, storage, disposal or transportation of any oil, flammable explosives, asbestos, urea 
formaldehyde, radioactive materials or waste, or other hazardous, toxic, contaminated or polluting 
materials, substances or wastes, including, without limitation, any “hazardous substances” under any 
such laws, ordinances or regulations (collectively “Hazardous Materials Laws”).  As used in the 
provisions of this Lease, “hazardous materials” include any “hazardous substance” as that term is defined 
in section 25316 of the California Health and Safety Code and any other material or substance listed or 
regulated by any Hazardous Materials Law or posing a hazard to health or the environment.  Except as 
otherwise expressly permitted in this Lease, Tenant shall not use, create, store or allow any hazardous 
materials on the premises.  Fuel stored in a motor vehicle for the exclusive use in such vehicle is 
excepted. 

In no case shall Tenant cause or allow the deposit or disposal of any hazardous materials on the 
Premises.  Landlord, or its agents or contractors, shall at all times have the right to go upon and inspect 
the Premises and the operations thereon to assure compliance with the requirements herein stated.  This 
inspection may include taking samples of substances and materials present for testing, and/or the testing 
of soils or underground tanks on the Premises. 
 In the event Tenant breaches any of the provisions of this Section, this Lease may be terminated 
immediately by Landlord and be of no further force or effect.  It is the intent of the parties hereto that 
Tenant shall be responsible for and bear the entire cost of removal and disposal of hazardous materials 
introduced to the Premises during Tenant’s period of use and possession as owner, operator or Tenant 
of the Premises.  Tenant shall also be responsible for any clean-up and decontamination on or off the 
Premises necessitated by the introduction of such hazardous materials on the Premises.  Tenant shall not 
be responsible for or bear the cost of removal or disposal of hazardous materials introduced to the 
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Premises by any party other than Tenant during any period prior to commencement of Tenant’s period 
of use and possession of the Premises as owner, operator or Tenant. 
 Tenant shall further hold Landlord, and its officers and employees, harmless from all 
responsibility, liability and claim for damages resulting from the presence or use of hazardous materials 
on the Premises during Tenant's period of use and possession of the Premises. 
 
5.8 Signs 
 
 Not more than four (4) advertising signs of a size not greater than thirty (30) square feet of surface 
area may be erected on the Premises.  The wording on these signs shall be limited to Tenant's name or 
trade name, the words "Parking," or "Auto Parking," a statement of rates, and a directional arrow.  The 
location of all these signs shall be subject to Landlord's prior approval.  None of these signs shall be 
attached to or painted on any bridge structure or building without the express written consent of 
Landlord.  All of these signs shall also comply with all applicable requirements of local governmental 
entitles, including governmental approval and payment of any fees. 
 Except as set forth in the previous paragraph of this Section, Tenant shall not construct, erect, 
maintain or permit any sign, banner or flag upon the Premises without the prior written approval of 
Landlord. Tenant shall not place, construct or maintain upon the Premises any advertising media that 
include moving or rotating parts, searchlights, flashing lights, loudspeakers, phonographs or other 
similar visual or audio media. The term "sign" means any card, cloth, paper, metal, painted or wooden 
sign of any character placed for any purpose on or to the ground or any tree, wall, bush, rock, fence, 
building, structure, trailer or thing.  Landlord may remove any unapproved sign, banner or flag existing 
on the Premises, and Tenant shall be liable to and shall reimburse Landlord for the cost of such removal 
plus interest as provided in Section 19.11 from the date of completion of such removal. 
 
5.9 Landlord's Rules and Regulations 
 
 Tenant shall faithfully observe and comply with the rules and regulations that Landlord shall 
from time to time promulgate for the protection of the transportation facility and the safety of the 
traveling public.  Landlord reserves the right from time to time to make reasonable modifications to said 
rules and regulations.  The additions and modifications to those rules and regulations shall be binding 
upon Tenant upon delivery of a copy of them to Tenant. 
 
5.10 Wrecked Vehicles 
 
 Tenant shall not park or store wrecked or inoperable vehicles of any kind on the Premises. 
 
5.11 Vending 
 

No third party vending of any kind or character shall be conducted, permitted or allowed upon 
the Premises without the prior express written consent of Landlord. 
 
5.12 Water Pollution Control 
 

Tenant  shall comply with all applicable State and Federal water pollution control requirements 
regarding storm water and non-storm water discharges from the tenant’s leasehold area and will be 
responsible for all applicable permits including but not limited to the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit and Waste Discharge Requirements for Discharges of 
Stormwater Associated with Industrial Activities (Excluding Construction), the NPDES General Permit 
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for Stormwater Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities, and the 
Caltrans Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System NPDES Permit, and permits and ordinances issued to 
and promulgated by municipalities, counties, drainage districts, and other local agencies regarding 
discharges of storm water and non-storm water to sewer systems, storm drain systems, or any 
watercourses under the jurisdiction of the above agencies.  Copies of the current storm water related 
NPDES permits are available on the State Water Resources Control Board’s website at 
http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/. 

Tenant understands the discharge of non-storm water into the storm sewer system is prohibited 
unless specifically authorized by one of the permits or ordinances listed above.  In order to prevent the 
discharge of non-storm water into the storm sewer system, vehicle or equipment washing, fueling, 
maintenance and repair on the Premises is prohibited.   

In order to prevent the discharge of pollutants to storm water resulting from contact with 
hazardous material, the storage or stockpile of hazardous material on Premises is strictly prohibited. 

Tenant shall implement and maintain the Best Management Practices (BMPs) shown in the 
attached Stormwater Pollution Prevention Fact Sheet(s) for:    marked “Exhibit B.”  
Tenant shall identify any other potential sources of storm water and non-storm water pollution resulting 
from Tenant’s activities on the premises, which are not addressed by the BMPs, contained in the attached 
Fact Sheet(s), and shall implement additional BMPs to prevent pollution from those sources.  Additional 
BMPs may be obtained from 2 other manuals:  

(1) Right of Way Property Management and Airspace Storm Water Guidance Manual available 
for review online at:  www.dot.ca.gov/hq/row/rwstormwater, and  

(2) Construction Site Best Management Practices Manual, available for review online at:  
www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/stormwater/manuals.htm.  
In the event of conflict between the attached fact sheet(s), the above-referenced manuals, and this Lease, 
this Lease shall control. 

Tenant shall provide Landlord with the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) code applicable 
to Lessee’s facilities and activities on the lease premises.  A list of SIC codes regulated under the General 
Industrial Permit SIC codes may be found at the State Water Resources Control Board website:  
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/gen_indus.shtml.  Other SIC codes 
may be found at www.osha.gov/pls/imis/sicsearch.html. 

Landlord, or its agents or contractors, shall at all times have the right to enter and inspect the 
Premises and the operations thereon to assure compliance with the applicable permits, and ordinances 
listed above.  Inspection may include taking samples of substances and materials present for testing, 
and/or the testing of storm sewer systems or watercourses on the Premises. 

 
ARTICLE 6.  IMPROVEMENTS 
 
6.1 No Improvements Without Prior Written Consent of Landlord 
 

No improvements of any kind shall be placed in, on, or upon the Premises, and no alterations 
shall be made in, on, or upon the Premises without the prior written consent of Landlord and the 
concurrence of the Federal Highway Administration.  Tenant may, at its sole expense, install and 
maintain any additional fencing and entrances that may be required by its use of the Premises, subject to 
the approval of the location by Landlord, the Federal Highway Administration and the City of  
  and County of    ; provided that Tenant shall at its sole expense construct and 
maintain sidewalks and driveways at the locations where the additional entrances are installed.  In the 
event Tenant violates any of the provisions of this Article, this Lease may be terminated immediately by 
Landlord and be of no further force or effect. 
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6.2 Encroachment Permit 
 
 Tenant, prior to construction or alteration of any improvements on or of the leased premises, shall 
obtain an executed Encroachment Permit from Landlord. 
 Issuance by Landlord of an Encroachment Permit shall be contingent upon Tenant's providing, 
at Landlord’s sole discretion, all or a combination of, the following, to the extent applicable: 
 (a) Final construction plans and detailed specifications.  All such plans and specifications 
submitted by Tenant to Landlord shall be subject to the review and approval of Landlord, the State Fire 
Marshal and if on an interstate freeway the Federal Highway Administration. 
 (b) Evidence of coverage that assures Landlord that sufficient monies will be available to 
complete the proposed construction or alteration.  The amount of coverage shall be at least equal to the 
total estimated construction cost.  Such coverage shall take one of the following forms: 
 (1) Completion bond issued to Landlord as obligee. 
 (2) Performance bond and labor and material bond or performance bond containing the 
provisions of the labor and material bond supplied by Tenant's contractor or contractors, provided said 
bonds are issued jointly to Tenant and Landlord as obligees. 
 (3) Satisfactory evidence of availability of funds necessary for completion of the proposed 
construction or alteration. 
 (4) Any combination of the above. 
 All bonds shall be issued by a company qualified to do business in the State of California and 
acceptable to Landlord.  All bonds be in a form acceptable to Landlord and shall ensure faithful and full 
observance and performance by Tenant of all terms, conditions, covenants and agreements relating to 
the construction of improvements within the leased premises. 
 (c) Liability insurance as provided in Article 10. 
 (d) A copy of a building permit issued by the appropriate local jurisdiction. 
 (e) A copy of Tenant's contract with the general contractor actually performing construction. 
 (f) Note and Deed of Trust, if any. 
 (g) Loan escrow instructions, if any. 
 (h) Final landscaping and irrigation plans and detailed specifications including a maintenance 
plan for litter removal, watering, fertilization and replacement of landscaping. 
 (i) Evidence of compliance with the applicable provisions of all federal, state and local 
environmental statutes, laws, regulations and ordinances. 
 Tenant agrees to diligently apply for and meet all requirements for issuance of the Encroachment 
Permit and Landlord agrees to not unreasonably withhold issuance of said Encroachment Permit.  Tenant 
is obligated to  deliver to Landlord the documents described in subdivisions (a) through (i) of this section 
regardless of whether an Encroachment Permit may have been issued inadvertently before these 
documents have been provided to Landlord. 
 
6.3 Planning and Zoning 
 

Tenant’s use and proposed improvements shall be subject to all applicable zoning, municipal, 
county, state and federal laws, ordinances and regulations governing and regulating the use of the 
Premises. 

 
6.4 Standard of Construction 
 
 Tenant agrees that any improvements or construction upon the premises shall:  (a) be consistent 
with all fire safety requirements including State Fire Marshall approval, (b) be subject to the approval of 
Landlord, and (c) in every respect comply with the laws, ordinances and regulations, federal, state, 
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municipal or otherwise, that may govern construction of the same.  Tenant shall not construct or place 
on the leased premises any improvements which impair Landlord's ability to maintain, operate, use, 
repair or improve any part of the transportation facility situated on the leased premises or on adjoining 
real property. Tenant shall save Landlord harmless of and from any loss or damage caused by reason of 
the construction of said improvements. 
 
6.5 Soil Testing 
 
 At Tenant's sole cost and expense, Tenant shall secure soil compaction tests and other tests as 
necessary for construction of Tenant's improvements and for the support of the improvements on the 
underlying land or structures thereon.  Tenant shall notify Landlord of the location of all test borings, 
which shall not interfere in any manner with the operation of the facility by Landlord.  Tenant hereby 
agrees that Landlord is making no representation regarding existing soil compaction or structural 
capability of the land or any existing structure thereon.  Responsibility for any loss or damage caused by 
inadequate soil compaction or other structural capacity for Tenant's proposed improvements shall be 
subject to the indemnification provisions of Section 10.1 
 
6.6 Commencement of Construction 
 
 Tenant shall commence construction of the improvements described in Tenant's final 
construction plans and detailed specifications within       calendar days of the date of execution of this 
Lease.  For the purposes of this Article, construction shall be deemed to have commenced upon the 
issuance by Landlord of an encroachment permit under Section 7.1.  In the event construction is not 
commenced within the time set forth herein, this Lease may be terminated by Landlord and thereafter be 
of no further force and effect. 
 
6.7 Completion of Construction and Occupancy of Improvements 
 
 Construction of the improvements shall be completed consistent with the approved construction 
plans within ______ calendar days after the commencement of construction.  Tenant shall not occupy or 
use any of the improvements until Tenant has received final building approval and a Certificate of 
Occupancy from the appropriate local agency and Landlord has issued to Tenant an executed 
Encroachment Permit Completion Notice.  In the event Tenant violates any of the provisions of this 
section, this Lease may be terminated by Landlord and be of no further force and effect. 
 
6.8 "As-Built" Plans 
 
 Within ninety (90) days after completion of construction of improvements or alterations, 
Tenant shall furnish Landlord, at Tenant's expense, one set of "As-Built" plans, according to a scale 
and size designated by Landlord, showing said improvements as constructed in detail, including the 
location of underground and aboveground utility lines. 
 
6.9 Termination If Required Construction Proves Economically Infeasible 
 

This Lease requires Tenant to submit plans for any proposed improvements and construction 
activities conducted on the premises and to obtain an Encroachment Permit prior to beginning any 
construction related activities on the premises.  If Landlord’s Encroachment Permits office reviews 
Tenant’s plans, and thereafter requires Tenant to construct certain improvements or to employ certain 
construction methods as a condition of the Encroachment Permit, Tenant shall have the option to elect 
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not to proceed with the construction or to terminate this lease agreement if the required improvements 
or construction methods prove economically infeasible to Tenant. 
 
ARTICLE 7.  SURRENDER OF PREMISES AT EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF LEASE 
 
 At the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Tenant shall peaceably and quietly leave, 
surrender, and yield up to Landlord the Premises together with all appurtenances and fixtures in good 
order, condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 
 
ARTICLE 8.  OWNERSHIP AND REMOVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY 
 
8.1 Ownership of Improvements During Term 
 
 All improvements constructed on the premises by Tenant as permitted or required by this Lease 
shall, during the term of this Lease, be and remain the property of Tenant; provided, however, that 
Tenant's rights and powers with respect to the improvements are subject to the terms and limitations of 
this Lease and Tenant's interest in such improvements shall terminate upon the expiration or earlier 
termination of this Lease.  Following completion of construction, Tenant shall not remove any 
improvements from the premises nor waste, destroy or modify any improvements on the premises, except 
as specifically permitted by this Lease.  At the expiration or termination of this lease, all improvements 
constructed on the premises by Tenant shall vest in Landlord.  Tenant shall deliver said improvements 
to Landlord in good condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear excepted, without compensation to 
Tenant, any subtenant or third party, free and clear of all claims to or against them by Tenant, any 
subtenant or third party, and Tenant shall defend and hold Landlord harmless from all liability arising 
from such claims or from the exercise by Landlord of its rights under this section.  In the event said 
improvements are not delivered to Landlord in good condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear 
excepted, Landlord shall make the necessary maintenance and repairs and Tenant shall be liable to and 
shall reimburse Landlord for any such expenditures made, plus interest as provided in Section 22.11 
from the date of completion of work.  Landlord and Tenant covenant for themselves and all persons 
claiming under or through them that the improvements are real property. 
 
8.2 Removal of Personal Property and Ownership at Termination 
 
 At the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Landlord may, at Landlord's sole election, 
require the removal from the premises, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, of all personal property (other 
than fixtures), or of certain personal property (other than fixtures), as specified in the notice provided for 
below.  A demand to take effect at the normal expiration of the term shall be effected by notice given at 
least thirty (30) days before the expiration date.  A demand to take effect on any other termination of the 
term of this Lease shall be effectuated by notice given concurrently with notice of such termination or 
within ten (10) days after such termination.  Tenant shall be liable to Landlord for costs incurred by 
Landlord in effecting the removal of personal property which Tenant has failed to remove after demand 
pursuant to this Section 8.2. 
 Tenant may remove any personal property from time to time within forty-five (45) days of the 
expiration of the term.  Tenant shall repair all damage (structural or otherwise) caused by any such 
removal.  Any personal property not removed by Tenant within forty-five (45) days following expiration 
of the term shall be deemed to be abandoned by Tenant and shall, without compensation to Tenant, 
become the Landlord's property, free and clear of all claims to or against them by Tenant or any other 
person. 
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8.3 Removal of Improvements at Termination 
 
 Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Landlord may, upon written notice, 
require Tenant to remove, at the sole cost and expense of Tenant, and not later than ninety (90) days 
after the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, all structures, buildings and improvements of 
any kind whatsoever placed or maintained on the premises, whether below, on or above the ground by 
Tenant or others, including, but not limited to, foundations, structures, buildings, utility lines, 
switchboards, transformer vaults and all other service facilities constructed or installed upon the 
premises; and Tenant shall, upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, immediately restore, 
and quit and peacefully surrender possession of the premises to Landlord in at least as good and usable 
condition, acceptable to Landlord, as the same was in at the time of first occupation thereof by Tenant 
or others, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and shall, in any event, leave the surface of the ground in a 
level, graded condition, with no excavations, holes, hollows, hills or humps.  Should Tenant fail to so 
remove said structures, buildings and improvements and restore the premises, Landlord may sell, remove 
or demolish the same, and in the event of said sale, removal or demolition, Tenant shall reimburse 
Landlord for any cost or expense thereof in excess of any consideration received by Landlord as a result 
of such sale, removal or demolition. 
 
8.4 Liens 
 

(a)  Exemption of Landlord from Liability 
 
 Tenant shall at all times indemnify and save Landlord harmless from all claims for labor or 
materials in connection with construction, repair, alteration, or installation of structures, improvements, 
equipment or facilities by Tenant or Tenant’s agents within the premises, and from the cost of defending 
against such claims, including attorney fees. 
 

(b) Tenant's Obligations 
 
 In the event a lien is imposed upon the premises as a result of such construction, repair, alteration 
or installation by Tenant or Tenant’s agents, Tenant shall either: 
 (1) Record a valid Release of Lien, or 
 (2) Deposit sufficient cash with Landlord to cover the amount of the claim on the lien in 
question and authorize payment to the extent of said deposit to any subsequent judgment holder that may 
arise as a matter of public record from litigation with regard to a lienholder claim, or 
 (3) Procure and record a bond in accordance with Section 3143 of the California Civil Code, 
which frees the premises from the claim of the lien and from any action brought to foreclose the lien. 
 Should Tenant fail to accomplish one of the three optional actions within 15 days after the filing 
of such a lien, the Lease shall be in default and shall be subject to immediate termination. 
 
ARTICLE 9.  MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS 
 
9.1 Tenant's Obligations 
 
 Tenant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain the Premises, and keep it free of all grass, 
weeds, debris, and flammable materials of every description.  Tenant shall ensure that the Premises is at 
all times in an orderly, clean, safe, and sanitary condition.  Landlord requires a high standard of 
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cleanliness, consistent with the location of the Premises as an adjunct of the California State Highway 
System.   

Tenant hereby expressly waives the right to make repairs at the expense of Landlord and waives 
the benefit of the provisions of Sections 1941 and 1942 of the California Civil Code or any successor 
thereto. 
 Tenant shall take all steps necessary to protect effectively the fences, guardrails, and the piers 
and columns, if any, of the all structures from damage incident to Tenant's use of the Premises and any 
improvements, all without expense to Landlord.  Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense, repair in 
accordance with Landlord's standards any damage to any property owned by Landlord, including, but 
not limited to, all fences, guardrails, piers and columns, caused by Tenant, subtenants, invitees or other 
third parties.  At Tenant's request, Landlord will repair the damage to its property, and Tenant agrees to 
reimburse Landlord promptly after demand for the amount Landlord has reasonably expended to 
complete the repair work.  
 Tenant shall be responsible for the care, maintenance, and any required pruning of trees, shrubs, 
or any other landscaping on the Premises.  Tenant assumes the liability for any damage or injury caused 
by any falling branches or other such materials from any tree or shrub whether the branches fall due to 
lack of maintenance or act of god or any other natural or unnatural causes.  Tenant’s liability insurance 
required within Article 10 shall cover any damage caused by any falling tree or shrub branches or other 
materials; and, furthermore, per the same Article 10, Tenant covenants and agrees to indemnify and save 
harmless Landlord from all liability, loss, cost, and obligation on account of any injuries or losses caused 
by any falling branches or material from any tree or shrub. 
 Tenant shall designate in writing to Landlord a representative who shall be responsible for the 
day-to-day operation and level of maintenance, cleanliness and general order. 
 
9.2 Landlord's Rights 
 
 In the event Tenant fails to perform Tenant's obligations under this Article, Landlord shall give 
Tenant notice to do such acts as are reasonably required to so maintain the Premises.  If within ten (10) 
days after Landlord sends written notice to repair, Tenant fails to do the work and diligently proceed in 
good faith to prosecute it to completion, Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, to do such 
acts and expend such funds at the expense of Tenant as are reasonably required to perform such work.  
Any amount so expended by Landlord shall be paid by Tenant promptly after demand plus interest as 
provided in Section 19.11 from the date of completion of such work to date of payment.  Landlord shall 
have no liability to Tenant for any damage, inconvenience or interference with the use of the Premises 
by Tenant as a result of performing any such work. 
 
9.3 Retention of Existing Improvements 
 
 Landlord may at its option retain existing State improvements including fencing, lighting and 
irrigation facilities.  If Landlord elects to retain any improvements, Tenant shall remove same and deliver 
same to Landlord's nearest maintenance station at no cost to Landlord. 
 
ARTICLE 10.  INSURANCE 
 
10.1 Indemnification 

Neither Landlord nor any of Landlord’s officers or employees is responsible for any injury, 
damage, or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by Tenant under or in 
connection with any work, authority, or jurisdiction conferred upon Tenant or arising under this Lease. 
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 It is understood and agreed Tenant will fully defend, indemnify, and save harmless Landlord 
and all of its officers and employees from all claims, suits, or actions of every kind brought forth under 
any theory of liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by Tenant under this 
Lease.  Tenant’s obligations to defend, indemnify, and save harmless Landlord extends to any and all 
claims, suits, or actions of every kind brought forth under any theory of liability occurring due to the 
use of the premises and Tenant’s operations under this Lease, any accompanying agreement with 
Landlord, and any encroachment permit issued by Landlord.   
 Tenant shall include in any contract it enters with any third party to conduct work in association 
with this Lease, including any contractors who design, construct, or maintain equipment, structures, 
fixtures or other property, a requirement the contractor will fully defend, indemnify and save harmless 
Landlord and its officers and employees from any and all claims, suits or actions of every kind brought 
forth under any theory of liability occurring due to the work conducted in association with this Lease.  
If Tenant has any additional insured endorsements executed by any third parties conducting work in 
association with this Lease naming Landlord to comply with this provision, Tenant shall provide 
copies of the additional insured endorsements and a Certificate of Insurance to Landlord within thirty 
(30) days of executing this lease. 
 If the Lease is terminated for any reason, Tenant also agrees to indemnify, defend, and save 
harmless Landlord from any third party claims for damages arising out of the termination of the Lease 
due to Landlord’s failure to comply with the requirements of the Lease.  Such third party claims 
include any claims from any contractors retained by Tenant or its successors. 
 Furthermore, Tenant agrees it controls the premises.  As such, Tenant agrees to defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless Landlord, its officers, agents, and employees for any and all claims 
arising out of any allegedly dangerous condition of public property based upon the condition of the 
premises. 
 Tenant agrees to defend, indemnify and save harmless Landlord, its officers, employees, and 
agents from any and all claims, suits or actions of every kind brought forth under any theory of liability 
with respect to the premises or the activities of Tenant or its officers, employees, and agents at the 
premises, excluding those arising by reason of the sole or active negligence of Landlord, its officers, 
employees, and agents.    
 Tenant’s obligations to defend and indemnify Landlord is not excused because of Tenant’s 
inability to evaluate liability or because Tenant evaluates liability and determines Tenant is not liable. 
Tenant must respond within 30 days to the tender of any defense and indemnity by Landlord, unless 
this time has been extended by Landlord. 
 
10.2 Liability Insurance 

Nothing in this Lease is intended to establish a standard of care owed to any member of the public or to 
extend to the public the status of a third-party beneficiary for any of these insurance specifications. 
 
Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance  
 Tenant shall provide workers’ compensation and employer’s liability insurance as required 
under the Labor Code and provide Landlord the following certification before performing any work 
(Labor Code § 1861) in connection with this Lease: “I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of 
the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation 
or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this contract.” 
 Tenant shall provide Employer's Liability Insurance in amounts not less than: 
1. $1,000,000 for each accident for bodily injury by accident 
2. $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
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3. $1,000,000 for each employee for bodily injury by disease 
 
Commercial General Liability Insurance 
 Tenant shall procure Commercial General Liability Insurance with $5 million per occurrence 
and aggregate limits covering all operations by or on behalf of Tenant, providing insurance for bodily 
injury liability and property damage liability, and including coverage for: 
1. Premises, operations and mobile equipment 
2. Products and completed operations 
3. Broad form property damage (including completed operations) 
4. Explosion, collapse, and underground hazards 
5. Personal injury 
6. Contractual liability 
  
Tenant shall provide proof of the Commercial General insurance policy with all endorsements, riders, 
and amendments to Landlord on or before the commencement of this Lease by a Certificate of 
Additional Insured.  
  
 The Commercial General Liability insurance procured by Tenant shall also comply with the 
following: 
1. Shall extend to all of Tenant’s operations and remain in full force and effect during the term of 

this Lease.   
2. Must be with an insurance company with a rating from A.M. Best Financial Strength Rating of 

A- or better and a Financial Size Category of VII or better.  
3. Shall be on Commercial General Liability policy form no. CG0001 as published by the 

Insurance Services Office (ISO) or under a policy form at least as broad as policy form no. 
CG0001. 

4. Shall contain completed operations coverage with a carrier acceptable to Landlord through the 
expiration of the latent and patent deficiency in construction statutes of repose set forth in Code 
of Civil Procedure section 337.15.  

5. Shall name Landlord, including its officers, directors, agents (excluding agents who are design 
professionals), and employees, as additional insureds under the General Liability Policy with 
respect to liability arising out of or connected with work or operations performed in connection 
with this Lease.  Coverage for such additional insureds does not extend to liability to the extent 
prohibited by Insurance Code section 11580.04.   

6.   Shall provide additional insured coverage by a policy provision or by an endorsement 
providing coverage at least as broad as Additional Insured (Form B) endorsement form CG 
2010, as published by the Insurance Services Office (ISO), or other form designated by 
Landlord. 

7. Shall state the insurance afforded the additional insureds applies as primary insurance. Any 
other insurance or self-insurance maintained by Landlord is excess only and must not be called 
upon to contribute with this insurance. 

 
 Tenant shall carry automobile liability insurance, including coverage for all owned, hired, and 
non-owned automobiles. The primary limits of liability must be not less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limit for each accident for bodily injury and property damage.  
 Landlord allows reasonable deductible clauses not overly broad, exceeding $250,000, or 
harmful to Landlord.  Tenant agrees by executing this Lease it shall defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless Landlord until such deductible is paid or applied to any claim arising out of this Lease, 
regardless of Tenant’s evaluation of liability, as discussed in Section 9.1.    



17 

 Landlord may assure Tenant’s compliance with Tenant’s insurance obligations. Ten days 
before an insurance policy lapses or is canceled during the term of this Lease, Tenant must submit 
evidence of renewal or replacement of the policy.  Tenant is not relieved of its duties and 
responsibilities to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Landlord, its officers, agents, and employees 
by Landlord’s acceptance of insurance policies and certificates.  The minimum insurance coverage 
amounts do not relieve Tenant from liability in excess of such coverage. 
  
10.3. Self-Insurance 
 
 Landlord acknowledges that Tenant may be self-insured.  Reasonable self-insurance programs 
and self-insured retentions in insurance policies are permitted by Landlord.  If Tenant uses a self-
insurance program or self-insured retention, Tenant must provide Landlord with the same protection 
from liability and defense of suits as would be afforded by first-dollar insurance.  Further, execution of 
this Agreement is Tenant’s acknowledgment Tenant will be bound by all laws as if Tenant were an 
insurer as defined under Insurance Code section 23 and Tenant’s self-insurance program or self-
insured retention shall operate as insurance as defined under Insurance Code section 22.  Tenant shall 
notify Landlord in writing not less than thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the termination of 
its self-insurance coverage and shall obtain the insurance coverage required by this section effective on 
that termination date. 
 
10.4 Failure to Procure and Maintain Insurance 

 If Tenant fails to procure or maintain the insurance required by this Article in full force and 
effect, this Lease may be terminated immediately by Landlord.  In addition, if Tenant fails to procure or 
maintain the insurance required by this Article, Tenant shall cease and desist from operating any business 
on the premises and the improvements erected thereon and shall prevent members of the public from 
gaining access to the premises during any period in which such insurance policies are not in full force 
and effect. 
 
10.5 Waiver of Subrogation 

 Tenant hereby waives any and all rights of recovery against Landlord, or against the officers, 
employees, agents and representatives of Landlord, for loss of or damage to Tenant or its property or the 
property of others under its control to the extent that such loss or damage is insured against under any 
insurance policy in force at the time of such loss or damages.  Tenant shall give notice to its insurance 
carrier or carriers that the foregoing waiver of subrogation is contained in the Lease. 
 
ARTICLE 11.  PAYMENT OF TAXES 
 
 Tenant agrees to pay and discharge, or cause to be paid and discharged when due, before the 
same become delinquent, all taxes, assessments, impositions, levies and charges of every kind, nature 
and description, whether general or special, ordinary or extraordinary, which may at any time or from 
time to time during the term of this Lease, by or according to any law or governmental, legal, political, 
or other authority whatsoever, directly or indirectly, be taxed, levied, charged, assessed or imposed upon 
or against, or which shall be or may be or become a lien upon the Premises or any buildings, 
improvements or structures at any time located thereon, or any estate, right, title or interest of Tenant in 
and to the Premises, buildings, improvements or structures.  Specifically, and without placing any 
limitation on Tenant's obligations under the immediately preceding sentence, Tenant shall pay when due, 
before delinquency, any and all possessory interest taxes, parking taxes, workers' compensation, taxes 
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payable to the California Franchise Tax Board, personal property taxes on fixtures, equipment and 
facilities owned by Tenant, whether or not the same have become so fixed to the land as to comprise a 
part of the real estate.   
 Tenant understands that any possessory interest of Tenant created in the Premises by this Lease 
may be subject to property taxation and that Tenant may be liable for payment of any such tax levied on 
such interest. Any obligation of Tenant under this Article, including possessory interest tax that the city 
or county may impose upon Tenant's interest herein, shall not reduce any rent due Landlord hereunder 
and any such obligation shall become the liability of and be paid by Tenant.  In the event Tenant defaults 
in the payment of any of the obligations set forth in this Article, this Lease may be terminated 
immediately by Landlord and be of no further force or effect. 
 
ARTICLE 12.  RIGHT OF ENTRY 
 
12.1 Inspection, Maintenance, Construction and Operation of Freeway Structures 
 
 Landlord, through its agents or representatives, and other city, county, state and federal agencies, 
through their agents or representatives, shall have full right and authority to enter in and upon the 
Premises and any building or improvements situated thereon at any and all reasonable times during the 
term of this Lease for the purpose of inspecting the same without interference or hindrance by Tenant, 
its agents or representatives. 
 
 Landlord further reserves the right of entry for the purpose of inspecting the Premises, or the 
doing of any and all acts necessary or proper on said Premises in connection with the protection, 
maintenance, reconstruction, and operation of the freeway structures and its appurtenances; provided, 
further, that Landlord reserves the further right, at its discretion, to immediate possession of the same in 
case of any national or other emergency, or for the purpose of preventing sabotage, and for the protection 
of said freeway structures, in which event the term of this Lease shall be extended for a period equal to 
the emergency occupancy by Landlord, and during said period Tenant shall be relieved, to the degree of 
interference, from the performance of conditions or covenants specified herein.  Landlord further 
reserves the right of entry by any authorized officer, engineer, employee, contractor or agent of the 
Landlord for the purpose of performing any maintenance activities upon the property which Tenant has 
failed to perform after the expiration of the applicable cure period specified in Article 9. 
 
12.2 Future Transportation Projects 
 

(a) Landlord's Right to Possession of Premises. 
 

Tenant understands and acknowledges that Landlord may, during the Term of this Lease, 
construct an "Approved and Funded Transportation Project", which may require the temporary or 
permanent use of all or a portion of the premises.  An "Approved and Funded Transportation Project" is 
defined as a proposed transportation facility to be constructed by Landlord where the funds necessary to 
construct the facility are available to Landlord (regardless of the source of the funds) and where the 
transportation facility can reasonable be expected to be constructed within a reasonable period of time 
following termination of this Lease as provided in this Article. 
 In the event Landlord determines that the premises or any portion thereof will be affected by an 
"Approved and Funded Transportation Project", Landlord shall immediately notify Tenant of its intent 
to take possession of all or a portion of the premises and shall provide Tenant with at least ninety (90) 
days written notice within which to vacate the required area.  Landlord's notice to Tenant shall indicate 
the area of the premises to be taken.  If possession is to be a temporary use of all or part of the premises, 
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Landlord shall additionally state in such notice to Tenant Landlord's reasonable estimate of the period 
of time of such temporary use by Landlord.  If possession is to be permanent, Landlord shall have the 
right to terminate the Lease.  Upon the date Landlord is entitled to possession of the premises, or portion 
thereof, Tenant shall peaceably surrender possession of the premises, or portion thereof, and comply 
with the restriction as stated in the notice.  The failure of Tenant to vacate the required area of the 
premises shall constitute a material default and breach of this Lease entitling Landlord to exercise its 
rights and remedies. 
 

(b) Reduction of Monthly Rent if Lease Remains Effective 
 

For the period during which Landlord has taken possession of the premises under this section, 
and if this Lease remains effective, Tenant shall be entitled to receive a reduction in Monthly Rent for 
the term of Landlord's use of the area of the premises used by Landlord.  The rent will be reduced by the 
same percentage as the useable square footage reduction as required by State’s project.   

 
(c) Tenant's Sole Rights; Tenant's Waiver. 

 
Landlord's taking of possession of the premises under this Section 12.2 does not constitute a 

taking or damaging entitling Tenant to compensation under any Condemnation provisions.  The 
reduction in Monthly Rent as provided herein shall be Tenant's sole remedy against Landlord for Tenant's 
inability to possess or use part or all of the area of the premises as a result of an "Approved and Funded 
Transportation Project", and Tenant expressly agrees to hold Landlord harmless from any and all liability 
for, and expressly waives any right it may have to recover against Landlord, damages to the Premises, 
any improvements constructed on the premises or improvements thereon, and damages to any other 
property, project or operations including any claim for loss of business goodwill or resulting from 
Tenant's inability to use or possess all or any portion of the premises as a result of an "Approved and 
Funded Transportation Project".  In addition, Tenant expressly recognizes that it is not entitled to receive 
benefits under the federal or state Uniform Relocation Assistance Act (United States Code, Section 7260, 
et seq.) as a result of Landlord's use or possession of any portion of the premises an "Approved and 
Funded Transportation Project".  Landlord agrees to instruct its authorized representatives to minimize 
the effect of any required construction on Tenant's use of the premises, both in the construction phase 
and in the permanent effect on the premises in connection with an "Approved and Funded Transportation 
Project". 
 
12.3 Maintenance Work and Retrofitting of Freeway Structures 
 
 Tenant understands and agrees that Landlord may be required to perform maintenance or retrofit 
work on all or a part of the freeway structures that are situated on and above the premises.  Landlord 
shall have the right to impose such restrictions on Tenant's right to enter, occupy, and use the premises 
and to maintain the existing improvements or construct improvements thereon as Landlord deems are 
necessary to enable it to complete construction of all freeway maintenance or structural retrofit work 
without interference from Tenant. 

In the event Landlord determines that it needs to obtain possession of all or a portion of the 
premises, or needs to place restrictions on Tenant's use of the premises, Landlord shall, if possible, at 
least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the commencement of such possession or restrictions 
notify Tenant in writing describing the extent of the possession or restrictions and the effective date of 
their commencement.  Upon the effective date of said notice, Tenant shall peaceably surrender 
possession of the premises and comply with the restrictions as stated therein.  The minimum monthly 
rent stated in Section 4.1, as adjusted in Section 4.2, shall be reduced by an amount equal to the 
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proportion which the area of the portion of the premises which Tenant is restricted from using or which 
has been surrendered to Landlord bears to the total area of the leased premises.  This reduction in rent 
shall be Tenant's sole remedy against Landlord for Tenant's inability to possess or use the entire area of 
the premises, and Tenant expressly agrees to hold Landlord harmless from any and all liability for, and 
expressly waives any right it may have to recover against Landlord, damages to the premises, any 
improvements constructed on the premises, and waives its right to use or possess any portion of the 
premises or improvements thereon, and damages to any other property, project or operation caused by 
Landlord's possession, imposition of restrictions or Tenant's inability to use or possess all or any portion 
of the premises.  In addition, Tenant expressly recognizes that it is not entitled to receive benefits under 
the federal or state Uniform Relocation Assistance Acts (United States Code, title 42, Section 4601, et 
seq.; California Government Code, Section 7260, et seq.) as a result of Landlord's use or possession of 
any portion of the premises. 

Tenant shall conduct its operations on the premises in such a manner so as not to interfere with 
Landlord's or its contractor's performance of any structural retrofit work done on or above the premises.  
Tenant acknowledges that the performance of the structural retrofit work may cause damage to paving 
or other improvements constructed by Tenant on the premises.  Tenant expressly agrees to hold Landlord 
harmless from all such damage to its improvements, except that at the conclusion of the retrofit work, 
Landlord shall restore the premises to their preexisting condition at no cost to Tenant.  
 
12.4 Reinstitution of Lease. 
 

If Landlord takes possession of all or a portion of the Premises in accordance with the 
preceding provisions of this Article 12, Landlord shall notify Tenant that Landlord has completed the 
use or work requiring such repossession within thirty days after Landlord completes such use or work, 
and if requested by Tenant in writing within ninety days thereafter, either (i) in the case of a partial 
repossession by Landlord, Tenant shall be entitled to lease the entire Premises (i.e., the initial Premises 
leased before Landlord’s repossession) and pay the corresponding minimum monthly rent for the 
remainder of the Lease term and (ii) in the case of a total repossession by Landlord and termination of 
the Lease, Landlord shall enter into a new lease with Tenant with respect to the entire Premises with 
substantially the same terms and conditions as set forth in this Lease (except that the expiration date of 
the new lease shall be extended one day for each day between the date of Landlord’s repossession and 
the commencement date of the new lease, which shall be Landlord’s only obligation to Tenant in the 
case it repossesses all of the Premises). 
 
ARTICLE 13.  CONDEMNATION BY PUBLIC ENTITIES OTHER THAN LANDLORD 

13.1 Definitions 
 
 (a) "Condemnation" means (1) the exercise of the power of eminent domain, whether by 
legal proceedings or otherwise, by a public entity having that power, that is, a condemnor, and (2) a 
voluntary sale or transfer to any condemnor, either under the threat of condemnation or while legal 
proceedings in condemnation are pending. 
 (b) "Award" means all compensation, sums, or anything of value awarded, paid or received 
upon a total or partial condemnation of the leased premises. 

(c) "Substantial taking" means a taking of a portion of the leased premises by condemnation 
which, assuming a reasonable amount of reconstruction on the remainder, substantially impairs Tenant's 
ability to use the remainder for the purposes permitted under this Lease. 
 
13.2 Termination of Lease as to Part Condemned 
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 In the event the whole or any part of the premises is taken by condemnation by a public entity, 
other than Landlord, in the lawful exercise of its power of eminent domain, this Lease shall cease as to 
the whole or the part condemned upon the date possession of the whole or that part is taken by the public 
entity. 
 
13.3 Partial Taking 
 
 If a part of the leased premises is taken by condemnation but there is no substantial taking of the 
premises, Tenant shall continue to be bound by the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Lease. 
However, if the fair rental value of the remainder will be less than the rent required by this Lease, the 
minimum monthly rent and adjusted minimum monthly rent shall be reduced to an amount equal to the 
fair rental value as of the date possession of the part is taken by the public entity. 
 If the part taken by condemnation constitutes a substantial taking of the leased premises, Tenant 
may elect to: 
 (a) Terminate this Lease and be absolved of obligations hereunder which have not accrued 
at the date possession is taken by the public entity; or 
 (b) Continue to occupy the remainder of the premises and remain bound by the terms, 
covenants and conditions of this Lease.  If Tenant elects to continue to occupy the remainder, and if the 
fair rental value of the remainder will be less than the rent required by this Lease, the minimum monthly 
rent and adjusted minimum monthly rent shall be reduced to the fair rental value as of the date possession 
of the part is taken by the public entity. 
 Tenant shall give notice in writing of its election to terminate this Lease hereunder within thirty 
(30) days of the date possession of the part is taken by the public entity.  If Tenant fails to give Landlord 
its written notice of termination within the time specified, this Lease shall remain in full force and effect 
except that the minimum monthly rental shall be reduced as provided in this section. 
 If it continues to occupy the remainder, Tenant, whether or not the award upon the taking by 
condemnation is sufficient for the purpose, shall, at its expense, within a reasonable period of time, 
commence and complete restoration of the remainder of the leased premises as nearly as possible to its 
value, condition and character immediately prior to such taking; provided, however, that in the case of a 
taking for temporary use, Tenant shall not be required to effect restoration until such taking is terminated.  
Tenant shall submit to Landlord its plans for the restoration of the remainder within ninety (90) days of 
the date possession of the part is taken by the public entity. 
 
13.4 Adjustment of Rent 
 
 Should a portion of the premises be condemned and the rent be reduced as provided above, the 
reduced rent shall continue to be subject to adjustment and reevaluation in accordance with Article 4. 
 
13.5 Compensation 
 

Landlord shall be entitled to receive and shall receive all compensation for the condemnation of 
all or any portion of the premises by exercise of eminent domain except as hereinafter provided.  Tenant 
shall be entitled to that portion of said compensation which represents the present worth as of the date 
possession is taken by the public entity of the remaining use under the Lease of all improvements 
constructed by Tenant on the leased premises located within the part taken by the public entity.  Tenant 
may also assert a claim for loss of business goodwill under the provisions of Section 1263.510 of the 
California Code of Civil Procedure.  Tenant shall assert no claim for loss of bonus value.  For the 
purposes of this Article, "condemnation bonus value" means that value attributable to the fact that the 
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rental rate Tenant is obligated to pay under this Lease is less than the fair market lease rate of the premises 
as defined in Article 4 above. 
 If all or a portion of the leased premises is condemned at a time when Tenant possesses an interest 
in real property located outside the leased premises (hereinafter called "outside property"), Tenant may 
claim entitlement to an award of damages accruing to the outside property by reason of the severance 
therefrom of the condemned portion of the leased premises as provided in the Eminent Domain Law 
(California Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1230.010 through 1273.050). 
 
ARTICLE 14.  UTILITIES 
 
 Tenant shall pay when due, and shall hold Landlord harmless from any liability for, all charges 
for water, gas, heat, light, power, telephone, sewage, air conditioning and ventilating, scavenger, 
janitorial and landscaping services and all other materials and utilities supplied to the Premises.  Landlord 
shall not be liable in damages or otherwise for any failure or interruption of any utility service furnished 
to the Premises, and no such failure or interruption shall entitle Tenant to terminate this Lease. 
 
ARTICLE 15.  DEFAULT 
 
15.1 Default 
 
 The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a material breach and default of this Lease 
by Tenant. 
 (a)  Any failure by Tenant to pay rent or any other monetary sums required to be paid hereunder, 
where such failure continues for ten (10) days after written notice thereof has been given by Landlord to 
Tenant. 
 (b)  The abandonment or vacation of the Premises by Tenant.  Failure to occupy and operate the 
Premises for thirty (30) consecutive days following the mailing of written notice from Landlord to 
Tenant calling attention to the abandonment shall be deemed an abandonment or vacation. 

(c)  The making by Tenant of any general assignment or general arrangement for the benefit of 
creditors; the filing by or against Tenant of a petition to have Tenant adjudged bankrupt or of a petition 
for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy (unless, in the case of a petition 
filed against Tenant the same is dismissed within sixty (60) days); the appointment of a trustee or receiver 
to take possession of substantially all of Tenant's assets, where possession is not restored to Tenant within 
forty-five (45) days; or the attachment, execution or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Tenant's 
assets, where such seizure is not discharged within thirty (30) days. 

(d)  The failure by Tenant to comply with any provision of any law, statute, zoning restriction, 
ordinance or governmental rule, regulation or requirement as set forth in Section 5.3 of this Lease. 

(e)  The failure by Tenant to comply with the requirements of the Lease Application. 
(f)  The failure by Tenant to comply with the requirements regarding hazardous materials as set 

forth in Article 5 of this Lease. 
(g)  The construction by Tenant of any improvements on the Premises contrary to the provisions 

of Article 6 of this Lease. 
(h)  The failure by Tenant to pay any tax, assessment, imposition, levy or charge of any kind as 

set forth in Article 11 of this Lease. 
(i)  The failure by Tenant to observe and perform any other provision of this Lease to be observed 

or performed by Tenant, where such failure continues for thirty (30) days after written notice thereof by 
Landlord to Tenant; provided, however, that if the nature of such default is such that it cannot be 
reasonably cured within such thirty (30) day period, Tenant shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant 
shall within such period commence such cure and thereafter diligently prosecute the same to completion. 
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15.2 Landlord's Remedies 
 
 In the event of any material default or breach by Tenant, Landlord may at any time thereafter, 
without limiting Landlord in the exercise of any right of remedy at law or in equity which Landlord may 
have by reason of such default or breach, terminate Tenant's right to possession by any lawful means, in 
which case this Lease shall immediately terminate and Tenant shall immediately surrender possession 
of the Premises to Landlord.  In such event Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Tenant all damages 
incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenant's default including, but not limited to, the following: 
 (a)  the worth at the time of award of any unpaid rent which had been earned at the time of such 
termination; plus  
 (b)  the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent which would have 
been earned after termination until the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that is proved 
could have been reasonably avoided; plus 
 (c)  the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent for the balance of the 
term after the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that is proved could be reasonably 
avoided; plus  
 (d)  any other amount necessary to compensate Landlord for all the detriment proximately caused 
by Tenant's failure to perform its obligations under this Lease or which in the ordinary course of events 
would be likely to result therefrom; plus 
 (e)  at Landlord's election, such other amounts in addition to or in lieu of the foregoing as may 
be permitted from time to time by applicable State law.  Upon any such re-entry Landlord shall have the 
right to make any reasonable repairs, alterations or modifications to the premises, which Landlord in its 
sole discretion deems reasonable and necessary.  As used in subparagraphs (a) and (b), above, the "worth 
at the time of award" is computed by including interest on the principal sum at a rate one percent (1%) 
above the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco from the date of default.  As used 
in subparagraph (c), above, the "worth at the time of award" is computed by discounting such amount at 
a rate one percent (1%) above the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco at the time 
of award.  The term "rent" as used in this Article shall be deemed to be and to mean rent to be paid 
pursuant to Article 4 and all other monetary sums required to be paid by Tenant pursuant to the terms of 
this Lease. 
 
15.3 Late Charges 
 
 Tenant hereby acknowledges that late payment by Tenant to Landlord of rent and other sums due 
hereunder will cause Landlord to incur costs not contemplated by this Lease, the exact amount of which 
will be extremely difficult to ascertain.  Such costs include, but are not limited to, processing and 
accounting charges.  Accordingly, if any installment of rent or any other sum due from Tenant shall not 
be received by Landlord or Landlord's designee within ten (10) days after such amount shall be due, a 
late charge equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the payment due and unpaid plus $100.00 shall 
be added to the payment, and the total sum shall become immediately due and payable to Landlord.  An 
additional charge of one and one-half percent (1.5%) of such payment, excluding late charges, shall be 
added for each additional month that such payment remains unpaid.  Landlord shall apply any monies 
received from Tenant first to any accrued delinquency charges and then to any other payments due under 
the Lease.  The parties hereby agree that such late charges represent a fair and reasonable estimate of the 
costs Landlord will incur by reason of late payment by Tenant.  Acceptance of such late charges by 
Landlord shall in no event constitute a waiver of Tenant's default with respect to such overdue amount, 
nor prevent Landlord from exercising any of the other rights and remedies granted hereunder. 
 



24 

15.4 Landlord's Right to Cure Tenant's Default 
 

 At any time after Tenant is in default or material breach of this Lease, Landlord may cure such 
default or breach at Tenant's cost.  If Landlord at any time, by reason of such default or breach, pays any 
sum or does any act that requires the payment of any sum, the sum paid by Landlord shall be due 
immediately from Tenant to Landlord at the time the sum is paid, and if paid at a later date shall bear 
interest as provided in Section 19.11 from the date the sum is paid by Landlord until Landlord is 
reimbursed by Tenant.  The sum, together with interest on it, shall be additional rent. 
 
ARTICLE 16.  ASSIGNMENTS, TRANSFERS, SUBLEASES AND ENCUMBRANCES 
 
16.1 Prohibition on Assignments, Transfers and Subleases 

 
Tenant shall not assign, transfer or sublease all or any part of its interest in this Lease or in the 

Premises, and Landlord reserves the right to deny its consent to any assignment, transfer or sublease of 
all or any part of this Lease or the Premises. 

 
16.2 Voluntary Assignments and Subleases 
  

In addition, with respect to transactions not expressly prohibited under Section 16.1, Tenant shall 
not voluntarily assign or transfer all or any part of its interest in this Lease or in the Premises, or sublet 
all or any part of the Premises, or allow any other person or entity (except Tenant's authorized 
representatives) to occupy or use all or any part of the Premises without first obtaining Landlord's written 
consent and the concurrence of the Federal Highway Administration. 

Landlord may, at its sole discretion, elect to consent to any such assignment, transfer or sublease 
if all of the following express conditions are satisfied: 

(a) Landlord receives compensation from Tenant upon the assignment, transfer, sale or sublease 
of any of Tenant's rights in the Premises per the provisions of Article 4.3. 

(b) The prospective assignee, transferee or subtenant completes a Lease Application and meets 
all of the requirements for eligibility to lease from the State of California. 

Tenant's failure to obtain Landlord's required written approval prior to any assignment, transfer 
or sublease shall render such assignment, transfer or sublease void.  Occupancy of the Premises by a 
prospective transferee, subtenant or assignee before approval of the transfer, sublease or assignment by 
Landlord shall constitute a breach of this Lease.  Landlord's consent to any assignment, transfer or 
sublease shall not constitute a waiver of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Lease.  Such 
terms, covenants and conditions shall apply to each and every assignment, sublease and transfer of rights 
under this Lease and shall be severally binding upon each and every party thereto.  Any document to 
transfer, sublet, or assign the Premises or any part thereof shall incorporate directly or by reference all 
the provisions of this Lease. 
 
16.3 Change in Partnership or Limited Liability Partnership 
 
 If Tenant is a partnership or limited liability partnership, a withdrawal or change, voluntary, 
involuntary or by operation of law, or the dissolution of the partnership, shall be deemed a voluntary 
assignment subject to the provisions of Section 16.2. 
 
16.4 Change in Tenants 
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 If Tenant consists of more than one person, a purported assignment, voluntary, involuntary or by 
operation of law, from one tenant to another shall be deemed a voluntary assignment subject to the 
provisions of Section 16.2. 
 
16.5 Change in Corporation or Limited Liability Company 
 
 If Tenant is a corporation or limited liability company, any dissolution, merger, consolidation, or 
other reorganization of Tenant, or the sale or other transfer of a controlling percentage of the capital 
stock of Tenant, or the sale of 51% of the value of the assets of Tenant, shall be deemed a voluntary 
assignment subject to the provisions of Section 16.2.  The phrase "controlling percentage" means the 
ownership of, and the right to vote, stock possessing at least 51% of the total combined voting power of 
all classes of Tenant's capital stock issued, outstanding, and entitled to vote for the election of directors 
or a controlling interest in the LLC. 
 
16.6 Assignment of Rent from Subtenants   
 
 Tenant immediately and irrevocably assigns to Landlord, as security for Tenant's obligations 
under this Lease, all rent from any subletting of all or a part of the Premises as permitted by this Lease, 
and Landlord, as assignee and attorney-in-fact for Tenant, or a receiver for Tenant appointed on 
Landlord's application, may collect such rent and apply it toward Tenant's obligations under this Lease; 
except that, until the occurrence of an act of default by Tenant, Tenant shall have the right to collect such 
rent. 
 
16.7 Information to be Supplied to Landlord 
 
 Tenant shall supply Landlord with all information Landlord determines to be necessary on all 
persons or firms to which Tenant proposes to sublet, transfer or assign any of its interest in the Premises, 
or which might establish rights to enter, control, or otherwise encumber the Premises by reason of any 
agreement made by Tenant.  In addition, with respect to any proposed sublease, transfer or assignment, 
Tenant shall provide Landlord with: 

(a)  a copy of all documents relating thereto, 
(b)  a statement of all terms and conditions of said transaction, including the consideration 

therefor, and 
(c)  a copy of the financial statement of the prospective subtenant, transferee or assignee. 

 (d)  a copy of all documents showing compliance by the prospective subtenant, transferee or 
assignee with all of the bid eligibility requirements contained in the bid package. 
 
16.8 Processing Fees for Assignments, Transfers and Subleases  
 

(a)  In addition to the sum specified in Section 4.3, a fee of one thousand five hundred dollars 
($1,500) shall be paid to Landlord for processing each consent to assignment, transfer, or sublease to 
Landlord as required by this Lease.  This processing fee shall be deemed earned by Landlord when paid 
and shall not be refundable. 

(b)  If a processing fee has been paid by Tenant for another phase of the same transaction, a 
second fee will not be charged. 

(c)  The amounts specified above for processing fees shall be automatically adjusted at the end 
of the first year of this Lease and every year thereafter in accordance with an annual fee schedule adopted 
by Landlord.  Landlord shall make said fee schedule available to Tenant upon receiving a request 
therefor. 
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16.9 Encumbrances 
 
 Tenant shall not encumber the Premises in any manner whatsoever. 
 
ARTICLE 17.  NONDISCRIMINATION 
 
 Tenant, for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the 
consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land that: (1) no 
person, on the ground of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, be denied 
the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) in connection 
with the construction of any improvements on said land and the furnishing of services thereon, no 
discrimination shall be practiced in the selection of employees and contractors, by contractors in the 
selection and retention of first-tier subcontractors, and by first-tier subcontractors in the selection and 
retention of second-tier subcontractors, (3) such discrimination shall not be practiced against the public 
in its access to and use of the facilities and services provided for public accommodations (such as eating, 
sleeping, rest, recreation, and vehicle servicing) constructed or operated on, over, or under the premises, 
and (4) Tenant shall use the land in compliance with all other requirements imposed pursuant to Title 
49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21 (49 C.F.R., Part 21) and as said regulations may be amended.  
In the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, the Landlord shall have the right 
to terminate this Lease, and to re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the 
same as if said Lease had never been made or issued. 
 
ARTICLE 18.  SECURITY DEPOSIT  
 
 Concurrently with Tenant's execution of this Lease, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord the sum 
of $    as a Security Deposit.  Said sum shall be held by Landlord as a Security Deposit for the 
faithful performance by Tenant of all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease to be kept and 
performed by Tenant during the term hereof.  If Tenant defaults with respect to any provision of this 
Lease, including but not limited to the provisions relating to the payment of rent and any of the monetary 
sums due herewith, Landlord may use, apply or retain all or any part of this Security Deposit for the 
payment of any other amount which Landlord may spend by reason of Tenant's default or use it to 
compensate Landlord for any other loss or damage which Landlord may suffer by reason of Tenant's 
default.  If any portion of said Deposit is so used or applied, Tenant shall within ten (10) days after 
written demand therefor, deposit cash with Landlord in an amount sufficient to restore the Security 
Deposit to its original amount; Tenant's failure to do so shall be a material breach of this Lease.  Landlord 
shall not be required to keep this Security Deposit separate from its general funds, and Tenant shall not 
be entitled to interest on such deposit.  If Tenant shall fully and faithfully perform every provision of 
this Lease to be performed by it, the Security Deposit or any balance thereof shall be returned to Tenant 
at the expiration of the Lease term and after Tenant has vacated the premises. 
 
ARTICLE 19.  ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 
 
19.1 Quiet Enjoyment 
 
 Landlord covenants and agrees with Tenant that upon Tenant paying rent and other monetary 
sums due under the Lease and performing its covenants and conditions, Tenant shall and may peaceably 
and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Premises for the term. 
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19.2 Captions, Attachments, Defined Terms 
 
 The captions of the Articles of this Lease are for convenience only and shall not be deemed to be 
relevant in resolving any question of interpretation or construction of any section of this Lease.  Exhibits 
attached hereto, and addenda and schedules initiated by the parties, are deemed by attachment to 
constitute part of this Lease and are incorporated herein.  The words "Landlord" and "Tenant," as used 
herein, shall include the plural as well as the singular.  Words used in neuter gender include the masculine 
and feminine and words in the masculine or feminine gender include the neuter.  If there be more than 
one Landlord or Tenant, the obligations hereunder imposed upon Landlord or Tenant shall be joint and 
several.  If the Tenants are husband and wife, the obligations shall extend individually to their sole and 
separate property as well as to their community property. 
 
19.3 Entire Agreement 
 
 This instrument along with any exhibits and attachments hereto constitutes the entire agreement 
between Landlord and Tenant relative to the premises and this agreement and the exhibits and 
attachments may be altered, amended or revoked only by an instrument in writing signed by both 
Landlord and Tenant.  Landlord and Tenant agree hereby that all prior or contemporaneous oral 
agreements between and among themselves and their agents and representatives relative to the leasing 
of the premises are merged in or revoked by this agreement. 
 
19.4 Severability 
 
 If any terms or provision of this Lease shall, to any extent, be determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected thereby, and 
each term and provision of this Lease shall be valid and be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by 
law. 
 
19.5 Costs of Suit 
 
 If Tenant or Landlord shall bring any action for any relief against the other, declaratory or 
otherwise, arising out of this Lease, including any suit by Landlord for the recovery of rent or possession 
of the premises, the losing party shall pay the successful party a reasonable sum for attorney's fees which 
shall be deemed to have accrued on the commencement of such action and shall be paid whether or not 
such action is prosecuted to judgment.  Should Landlord, without fault on Landlord's part, be made a 
party to any litigation instituted by Tenant or by any third party against Tenant, or by or against any 
person holding under or using the premises by license of Tenant, or for the foreclosure of any lien for 
labor or materials furnished to or for Tenant or any such other person or otherwise arising out of or 
resulting from any act or transaction of Tenant or of any such other person, Tenant shall save and hold 
Landlord harmless from any judgment rendered against Landlord or the premises or any part thereof, 
and all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred by Landlord in connection with 
such litigation. 
 
19.6 Time, Joint and Several Liability 
 
 Time is of the essence of this Lease and each and every provision hereof, except as to the 
conditions relating to the delivery of possession of the premises to Tenant.  All the terms, covenants and 
conditions contained in this Lease to be performed by either party if such party shall consist of more 
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than one person or organization, shall be deemed to be joint and several, and all rights and remedies of 
the parties shall be cumulative and non-exclusive of any other remedy at law or in equity. 
 
19.7 Binding Effect; Choice of Law 
 
 The parties hereto agree that all the provisions hereof are to be construed as both covenants and 
conditions as though the words importing such covenants and conditions were used in each separate 
section hereof; and all of the provisions hereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto 
and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  This Lease shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of California. 
 
19.8 Waiver 
 
 No covenant, term or condition or the breach thereof shall be deemed waived, except by written 
consent of the party against whom the waiver is claimed and any waiver or the breach of any covenant, 
term or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same 
or any other covenant, term or condition.  Acceptance by Landlord of any performance by Tenant after 
the time the same shall have become due shall not constitute a waiver by Landlord of the breach or 
default of any covenant, term or condition.  Acceptance by Landlord of any performance by Tenant after 
the time the same shall have become due shall not constitute a waiver by Landlord of the breach or 
default of any covenant, term or condition unless otherwise expressly agreed to by Landlord in writing. 
 
19.9 Surrender of Premises 
 
 The voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Tenant, or a mutual cancellation thereof, shall 
not work a merger and shall, at the option of the Landlord, terminate all or any existing subleases or 
subtenancies, or may, at the option of Landlord, operate as an assignment to it of any or all such subleases 
or subtenancies. 
 
19.10 Holding Over 
 
 If Tenant remains in possession of all or any part of the premises after the expiration of the term 
hereof, with or without the express or implied consent of Landlord, such tenancy shall be from month to 
month only and not a renewal hereof or an extension for any further term, and in such case, rent and 
other monetary sums due hereunder shall be payable at the time specified in this Lease and such month-
to-month tenancy shall be subject to every other term, covenant, condition and agreement contained 
herein, except that the monthly rental rate set forth in Section 4.1 may be increased by Landlord effective 
the first month of the holdover period, or upon 30 days notice any time thereafter. 
 
19.11 Interest on Past Due Obligations 
 
 Except as expressly herein provided, any amount due to Landlord not paid when due shall bear 
interest at a rate one percent (1%) above the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco 
from the due date.  Payment of such interest together with the amount due shall excuse or cure any 
default by Tenant under this Lease. 
 
19.12 Recording 
 
 Neither Landlord nor Tenant shall record this Lease.  
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19.13 Notices 
 
 All notices or demands of any kind required or desired to be given by Landlord or Tenant 
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered forty-eight (48) hours after depositing the 
notice or demand in the United States mail, certified or registered, postage prepaid, addressed to the 
Landlord or Tenant respectively at the addresses set forth in Article 1. 
 
19.14 No Reservation 
 
 Submission of this instrument for examination or signature by Tenant does not constitute a 
reservation of or option for lease; it is not effective as a lease or otherwise until execution and delivery 
by both Landlord and Tenant. 
 
19.15 Corporate Authority 
 
 If Tenant is a corporation, each individual executing this Lease on behalf of said corporation 
represents and warrants that he/she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of said 
corporation in accordance with a duly adopted resolution of the Board of Directors of said corporation 
or in accordance with the Bylaws of said corporation, and that this Lease is binding upon said corporation 
in accordance with its terms.  If Tenant is a corporation, Tenant shall, within thirty (30) days after 
execution of this Lease, deliver to Landlord a certified copy of resolution of the Board of Directors of 
said corporation authorizing or ratifying the execution of this Lease. 
 
19.16 Force Majeure  
 
 If either Landlord or Tenant shall be delayed or prevented from the performance of any act 
required hereunder by reason of acts of God, governmental restrictions, regulations or controls (except 
those reasonably foreseeable in connection with the uses contemplated by this Lease) or other cause 
without fault and beyond the control of the party obligated (except financial inability), performance of 
such act shall be excused for the period of the delay and the period for the performance of any such act 
shall be extended for a period equivalent to the period of such delay.  Nothing in this clause shall excuse 
Tenant from prompt payment of any rent, taxes, insurance or any other charge required of Tenant, except 
as may be expressly provided in this Lease. 
 
 In Witness Whereof Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease as of the date first written 
above. 
 
LANDLORD: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
Dated: ________________       By: ____________________________________ 
      LINDA EMADZADEH, Chief 
    R/W Airspace, LPA, and Excess Lands 
 
TENANT:       
 
 
Dated: ________________       By: ____________________________________ 
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Low Accountancy 
David M. Low, CPA 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Board of Directors   
Emeryville Transportation    
 Management Association 
Emeryville, California 
 
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Emeryville Transportation 
Management Association which comprises the statement of financial position as of December 
31, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and 
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my 
audits.  I conducted my audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, I express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  I believe that the audit 
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of Emeryville Transportation Management 
Association as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in its net assets and cash 
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 

Low Accountancy                                   
Low Accountancy 
David M. Low, CPA 
 
March 29, 2019 
 
 

236 Latera Court, San Ramon, CA  94582-4680 
(925) 828-7203  (925) 828-7204  Fax 

davelow54@sbcglobal.net
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EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION   

MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

 
                                                 2018           2017    
ASSETS 
                                                                         
Current Assets 
 Cash and cash equivalents                   $2,659,113     $1,995,247 
 Accounts receivable                             82,056         85,507 
 Prepaid expenses                                 5,336          4,759 
   Total Current Assets                       2,746,505      2,085,513 
 
Fixed Assets                                  4,141,914      4,005,499 
 Less:  Accumulated Depreciation             (2,707,138)    (2,487,930) 
   Net Fixed Assets                           1,434,776      1,517,569 
 
 
      TOTAL ASSETS                           $4,181,281     $3,603,082 
 
 
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
 
Current Liabilities 
 Accounts payable and accrued expenses       $  461,119     $  258,160 
 Current portion of notes payable               321,465        307,528 
   Total Current Liabilities                    782,584        565,688 
 
Long-Term Liabilities                                                   
 Notes Payable                                  779,667        555,076 
 
   Total Liabilities                          1,562,251      1,120,764 
 
Net Assets 
 Without donor restrictions                                                 
  Designated                                  1,683,633      1,538,578 
  Undesignated                                  935,397        943,740 
   Total Net Assets                           2,619,030      2,482,318 
 
      TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
       NET ASSETS                            $4,181,281     $3,603,082 
 
 
 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION   

MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

 
                                                   2018           2017                                                                             
Support and Revenues 
 PBID proceeds                                 $3,476,248     $3,298,681                
 Emeryville general benefit contribution          547,397        522,632 
 West Berkeley shuttle services                   340,000        322,560 
 Paratransit 8 To Go                               92,278        149,019 
 Bayer Mid-Day service                             52,105         51,585 
 Direct billed revenue                             98,549         75,593 
 Other                                             69,267          1,778 
   Total Support and Revenues                   4,675,844      4,421,848 
Expenses 
 Shuttle Services 
  Contract services-Shuttle Buses               2,075,910      1,925,130 
  Bus repairs, maintenance and other              580,216        523,243 
  West Berkeley shuttle services                  291,380        297,212 
  Paratransit 8 To Go                              93,543        151,427 
  Bayer Mid-Day service                            40,900         35,908 
  Management contract                             362,347        386,173 
  Depreciation                                    625,288        554,769 
   Total Program Services                       4,069,584      3,873,862 
 Supporting Services:    
  Office expense                                    5,297          4,739 
  Marketing expenses                                4,022         13,624 
  Insurance                                        11,871          6,224 
  Interest                                         53,958         49,232 
  Professional fees                                37,784         32,100 
  Book value of disposed assets                    72,224           -  
  Yard rent and property tax charges              140,752        148,932 
  Yard repairs and maintenance                     10,769         10,491 
  Yard site development and relocation            126,172         13,561 
  Taxes, fees and licenses                            754            609 
  Telephone and utilities                           5,945          6,152 
   Total Supporting Services                      469,548        285,664 
 
    Total Expenses                              4,539,132      4,159,526 
 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS W/O DONOR RESTRICTIONS       136,712        262,322  
 
NET ASSETS W/O DONOR RESTRICTIONS-BEG.OF YEAR   2,482,318      2,219,996 
         
NET ASSETS W/O DONOR RESTRICTIONS-END OF YEAR  $2,619,030     $2,482,318 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 

 
 
 



 
                                                                Page 4 
 

EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTAION   

MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

 
 
                                                 2018           2017                                                                             
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
  Increase (decrease) in net assets from  
    unrestricted net assets                 $  136,712      $  262,322  
  Adjustments to reconcile change in 
   net assets to net cash provided (used) 
    by operating activities: 
     Depreciation                              625,288         554,769  
     Book value of disposed assets              72,224            -  
     (Increase) decrease in current assets: 
        Accounts receivable                      3,451          37,686  
        Prepaid expenses                          (577)         49,215  
     Increase (decrease) in current  
      Liabilities: 
        Accounts payable and accrued  
         expenses                              202,959         (64,208) 
 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES    1,040,057         839,784           
                                                                     
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES                                
  Purchase of fixed assets                    (612,220)       (451,627) 
  Deletion of equipment-net                     (2,499)          1,788 
 
NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES        (614,719)       (449,839)                                 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  Notes payable on purchase of buses           612,220         401,627 
  Notes payable and advance billing  
   repayments                                 (373,692)       (275,708) 
 
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    238,528         125,919  
 
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 
  AND CASH EQUIVALENTS                         663,866         515,864  
 
BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS          1,995,247       1,479,383 
 
 
ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS            $2,659,113      $1,995,247 
 
 
Supplemental: Interest Paid                 $   53,958        $ 49,232  
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTAION   

MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

 
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Organization 
 
Emery Go Round is a shuttle bus service of the Emeryville Transportation 
Management Association (the Association), a nonprofit organization, whose 
primary purpose is to increase access and mobility to, from, and within the City 
of Emeryville (the City), while alleviating congestion through operation of a 
shuttle program.  The Association’s Board of Directors, who also serve as the 
official representative of property owners for the City formed Emeryville 
Property Based Business Improvement District (PBID), determines tax assessment 
rates as well as the level of shuttle service on an annual basis.   
 
The Association entered into a “Shuttle Bus Service Funding Agreement” with the 
City effective July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2030, so that the City can continue 
to provide the Association with funding for the Shuttle via the PBID in return 
for the Association operating the Shuttle as contemplated in the PBID Management 
District Plan.   
 
 
Significant Accounting Policies: 
 
 
Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation  
 
The financial statements of the Association have been prepared on an accrual 
basis.  The significant accounting policies are described below to enhance the 
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.  The Association has 
adopted to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to two classes of net assets:  net assets without donor restrictions 
and net assets with donor restrictions.  As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the 
Association did not have any net assets with donor restrictions. 
 
 
Designated Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 
                                                                
Certain amounts of net assets without donor restrictions, have been designated 
by the Board of Directors as follows: 
                                                     
                                    Balance                           Balance 
        Designation                12/31/17  Increases   Decreases   12/31/18  
Non PBID Activities              $  138,578  $      55   $    -     $  138,633   
Operating Reserve                   400,000    145,000        -        545,000 
Facility Reserve                  1,000,000       -           -      1,000,000 
    Totals                       $1,538,578  $ 145,055   $    -     $1,683,633 
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EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTAION   

MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

 
Significant Accounting Policies: 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
Association management has evaluated subsequent events through March 29, 2019, 
the date the accompanying financial statements were available to be issued. 
 
Reclassifications 
                                                                
Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified 
for comparative purposes to conform to presentations in the current-year 
financial statements. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Association considers all 
highly liquid investments available for current use with an initial maturity of 
less than one month to be cash equivalents.  Cash and cash equivalents consist 
of cash on hand and cash held in checking and money market accounts.   
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible. 
 
Prepaid and Deposits 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting 
periods and are recorded as prepaid items or deposits depending on the nature of 
the payment. 
 
Income Taxes  
 
The Association is a California nonprofit corporation, exempt from Federal 
income taxes under Section 501 (C) (4) of the Internal Revenue Code, and State 
income taxes under Section 23701(f) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. 
 
Pervasiveness of Estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTAION   

MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND CREDIT RISK 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2018 and 2017, consisted of the 
following: 
 
                                            12/31/18       12/31/17                                                                           
                                           
        Petty Cash                        $       10     $       10 
        Checking Accounts                     16,641         54,866  
        Money Market Accounts              2,642,462      1,940,371 
          
         Totals                           $2,659,113     $1,995,247 
 
 
Of the Money Market Accounts, on December 31, 2018, all was insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.   
 
 
NOTE 3 - FIXED ASSETS 
 
Fixed Assets activity is comprised of the following: 
 
                              Balance                           Balance         
                             12/31/17   Additions  Deletions   12/31/18                                                                         
Depreciated Fixed Assets 
 Buildings & Improvements  $  128,004   $   -      $128,004  $     -    
 Transportation Equipment   3,754,561    612,220    237,106   4,129,675       
 Furniture & Fixtures          10,858       -        10,858        -    
 Equipment                    112,076       -        99,837      12,239 
    Total Fixed Assets      4,005,499    612,220    475,805   4,141,914 
 
Less accumulated depreciation 
 Buildings & Improvements      79,598      1,260     80,858        -    
 Transportation Equipment   2,287,978    624,028    217,107   2,694,899       
 Furniture & Fixtures          10,858       -        10,858        -    
 Equipment                    109,496       -        97,257      12,239 
    Total accumulated                                                                       
       depreciation         2,487,930    625,288    406,080   2,707,138 
                                                                     
Fixed assets, Net          $1,517,569  $ (13,068)  $(69,725) $1,434,776 
 
 
Depreciated fixed assets include the above categories (e.g., buses, mobile 
office building, bus equipment and similar items), and are reported in the 
statement of net assets.  The Association capitalizes assets with a cost or 
donated value of more than $2,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of five 
years.  Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method in lives 
ranging from five to forty years. 
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EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTAION   

MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

 
NOTE 4 – NOTES PAYABLE 
 
On April 1, 2017, the Association purchased three 2017 Starcraft XL Shuttle 
Buses, for $451,627, with 60 monthly payments of $7,763 @ a 6.573% imputed 
interest rate.  On March 28, 2016, the Association purchased three 2016 
Starcraft XL Shuttle Buses for $446,685, with 36 monthly payments of $13,275.50 
@ a 4.440% imputed interest rate.  On August 2, 2016 the Association purchased 
three 2016 Starcraft XL Shuttle Buses for $422,033, with 60 monthly payments of 
$7,980.50 @ a 5.118% imputed interest rate.  On May 3, 2018 the Association 
purchased four 2018 Starcraft XL Shuttle Buses for $622,220, with 60 monthly 
payments of $11,346.14 @ a 4.25% imputed interest rate. Future principal 
payments are as follows: 
 
                     December 31, 2019       $  321,465 
                     December 31, 2020          292,952 
                     December 31, 2021          260,085 
                     December 31, 2022          160,975 
                     December 31, 2023           65,655 
                        Totals               $1,101,132 
 
 
NOTE 5 – RENT AGREEMENTS 
 
Effective April 6, 2018 through March 31, 2020, the Association entered into bus 
storage parking lot agreement calling for monthly payments of $6,000 plus 
utilities.  Effective April 4, 2018 through March 31, 2020, the Association 
entered into an office space agreement calling for monthly payments of $3,713 
plus utilities and janitorial costs.   The Association is currently negotiating 
for alternate sites for its shuttle buses and office space.  For the year ended 
December 31, 2018 the Association paid $135,341 in rents and $5,411 in property 
tax charges.   Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 
 
                     December 31, 2019         $116,550 
                     December 31, 2020           29.139 
                        Totals                 $145,689   
 
 
 
NOTE 6 – COMMITMENTS 
 
Effective February 1, 2018 through December 31, 2020, with a two year option 
through December 31, 2022, the Association entered into an agreement with the MV 
Transportation, Inc. to provide bus driver services to the Association.  The 
agreement calls for the Association to reimburse such services on a cost plus 
fixed fee basis.  The Association has also entered into various professional 
service agreements to assist with the planning, management and overall 
operations of the Association. 
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Total assets (Part X, line 16). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20

Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21

Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

Part II Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and
complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

A Signature of officer DateSign
Here A

Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date PTINCheck if

self-employedPaid
GFirm's namePreparer
GUse Only Firm's EIN GFirm's address

Phone no.

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

TEEA0101L  08/20/18BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2018)

Emeryville Transportation
Management Association
1211 Newell Ave Suite 200
Walnut Creek, CA 94596

94-3244359

510 451-3862

X 4

X

emerygoround.com

2,619,030.2,482,318.

1,562,251.1,120,764.
4,181,281.3,603,082.

136,712.262,322.
4,539,133.4,159,527.
4,539,133.4,159,527.

4,675,845.4,421,849.

2,092.1,069.
4,126,356.3,898,148.

547,397.522,632.

0.
0.
0
0

10
10

CA1997X

4,675,845.

ChairmanTim Bacon

X

Provide free bus shuttle service, that
links with local and regional public transporation services, for the employers,
hotels and retail centers in Emeryville.

John Tounger CPA 4/13/19

X

P01265219
John S. Tounger CPA

68-0166029585 Mandana Blvd Ste 10
(510) 893-0950Oakland, CA 94610-2270

1211 Newell Ave Suite 200  Walnut Creek, CA 94596

John Tounger CPA
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Part III Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Briefly describe the organization's mission:1

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the prior2

Form 990 or 990-EZ?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? . . . . 3 Yes No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses,
and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

$ $ $including grants of ) (Revenue )(Code: ) (Expenses4 a

$ $ $including grants of ) (Revenue )(Code: ) (Expenses4 b

$ $ $(Code: ) (Expenses including grants of ) (Revenue )4 c

Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)4 d

$ $ $(Expenses including grants of ) (Revenue )

Total program service expenses4 e G
Form 990 (2018)TEEA0102L   08/03/18BAA

4,539,133.

4,539,133. 4,126,356.

X

X

94-3244359Emeryville Transportation

Provide free bus shuttle service, that links with local and regional public

transporation services, for the employers, hotels and retail centers in Emeryville.

The Emery Go Round shuttle improves access and mobility to, from and within the city
of Emeryville with free services to employees, visitors and residents that link the
local light rail (BART), local bus transit (AC Transit), and Amtrak rail station with
destinations throughout the City.  The organization also provides a West Berkeley bus
shuttle service.
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Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes No

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If 'Yes,' complete1
Schedule A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates3
for public office? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election4
in effect during the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,5
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part III. . . . . . . 5

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right6
to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D,
Part I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, the7
environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If 'Yes,'8
complete Schedule D, Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian9
for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation
services? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,10
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part V . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is 'Yes', then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX,11
or X as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If 'Yes,' complete Schedulea
D, Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 a

Did the organization report an amount for investments ' other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its totalb
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part VII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 b

Did the organization report an amount for investments ' program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its totalc
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part VIII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 c

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reportedd
in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part IX. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 d

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X . . . . . . e 11 e

Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addressesf
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X. . . . 11 f

Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete12 a
Schedule D, Parts XI and XII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12a

Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' andb
if the organization answered 'No' to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 b

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule E . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 13

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 a 14a

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,b
business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued
at $100,000 or more? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14b

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any15
foreign organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to16
or for foreign individuals? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,17
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII,18
lines 1c and 8a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 'Yes,'19
complete Schedule G, Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19

20a20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule H . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If 'Yes' to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 20b

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or21
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule I, Parts I and II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21

TEEA0103L   08/03/18 Form 990 (2018)BAA
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Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules  (continued)
Yes No

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on Part IX,22
column (A), line 2? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule I, Parts I and III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

Did the organization answer 'Yes' to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current23
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If 'Yes,' complete
Schedule J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of24 a
the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If 'Yes,' answer lines 24b through 24d and
complete Schedule K. If 'No, 'go to line 25a . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24a

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 24b

Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defeasec
any tax-exempt bonds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24c

Did the organization act as an 'on behalf of' issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 24d

Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit25 a
25atransaction with a disqualified person during the year? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, andb
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If 'Yes,' complete
Schedule L, Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25b

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or26
former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons?
If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial27
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member

27of any of these persons? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV28
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 28a

A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If 'Yes,' completeb
Schedule L, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28b

An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was anc
officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28c

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule M . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 29

Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation30
contributions? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule M. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30

Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule N, Part I. . . . . . . 31 31

Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If 'Yes,' complete32
Schedule N, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32

Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections33
301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV,34
and Part V, line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34

Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35 a 35a

If 'Yes' to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlledb
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35b

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related36
36organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization and that is37
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37

Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?38
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Yes No

Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 a 1 a

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable. . . . . . . . . . . . b 1 b

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gamingc
(gambling) winnings to prize winners?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 c

TEEA0104L   08/03/18 Form 990 (2018)BAA

Emeryville Transportation 94-3244359

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X

4
0

X



Form 990 (2018) Page 5

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)

Yes No

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax State-2 a
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return . . . . . 2 a

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2 b

Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 a 3 a

If 'Yes,' has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If 'No' to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 3 b

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a4 a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . . . . . . . . . 4 a

If 'Yes,' enter the name of the foreign country: Gb

See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 a 5 a

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?. . . . . . . . . . . . b 5 b

If 'Yes,' to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 5 c

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization6 a
solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 a

If 'Yes,' did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts wereb
not tax deductible?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 b

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods anda
services provided to the payor?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 a

If 'Yes,' did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 7 b

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to filec
Form 8282? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 c

If 'Yes,' indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 7 d

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?. . . . . . . . . . e 7 e

Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . f 7 f

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899g
as required?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 g

If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file ah
Form 1098-C? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 h

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.  Did a donor advised fund maintained by the sponsoring

organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 9 a

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 9 b

10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 10 a

Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities. . . . . b 10 b

11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:

Gross income from members or shareholders. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 11 a

Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sourcesb
against amounts due or received from them.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 b

12 a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 a

If 'Yes,' enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year. . . . . . . b 12 b

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 13 a

Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states inb
which the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 b

Enter the amount of reserves on hand. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 13 c

Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 a 14 a

If 'Yes,' has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If 'No,' provide an explanation in Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 14 b

15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
15excess parachute payment(s) during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If 'Yes,' see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.

16Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income?16

If 'Yes,' complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

TEEA0105L   12/31/18BAA Form 990 (2018)
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Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each 'Yes' response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for
a 'No' response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in
Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . . . . . 1 a 1 a
If there are material differences in voting rights among members
of the governing body, or if the governing body delegated broad
authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule O.

Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent. . . . . . b 1 b

Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other2
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision3
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents4

since the prior Form 990 was filed? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55

Did the organization have members or stockholders?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66

Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or more7 a
members of the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 a

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,b
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 b

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by8
the following:

The governing body?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 8 a

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 8 b

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the9
organization's mailing address? If 'Yes,' provide the names and addresses in Schedule O . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

Section B. Policies  (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes No

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 a 10 a

If 'Yes,' did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates, and branches to ensure theirb
operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 b

Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 a 11 a

Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.b

Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If 'No,' go to line 13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 a 12 a

Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give riseb
to conflicts? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 b

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If 'Yes,' describe inc
Schedule O how this was done. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 c

Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 13

Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 14

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent15
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 15 a

Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 15 b

If 'Yes' to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a16 a
taxable entity during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 a

If 'Yes,' did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate itsb
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 b

Section C. Disclosure
List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed G17

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only)18
available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Other (explain in Schedule O)Own website Another's website Upon request

Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial statements available to19
the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records20 G
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Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section A.  Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1 a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

? List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

? List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of 'key employee.'

? List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

? List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

? List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated
employees; and former such persons.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(C)

Position (do not check more
(D) (E) (F)(A) (B) than one box, unless person

Name and Title Average Reportable Reportable Estimatedis both an officer and a
hours compensation from compensation from amount of otherdirector/trustee)
per the organization related organizations compensation

week (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
(list any organization
hours for and related
related organizations

organiza-
tions
below
dotted
line)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

TEEA0107L   08/03/18 Form 990 (2018)BAA

Emeryville Transportation 94-3244359

X

Geoffrey Sears 2
Vice Chair 0 X X 0. 0. 0.
Tim Bacon 1
Chairman 0 X X 0. 0. 0.
Bobby Lee 1
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
Andrew Allen 1
Treasurer 0 X X 0. 0. 0.
Ron Silberman 1
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
Peter Schreiber- Pixar 1
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
Betsy Cooley 1
Secretary 0 X X 0. 0. 0.
Max Frankel 1
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
Colin Osborne 1
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
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Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(B) (C)

Position
(D) (E) (F)Average (do not check more than one(A)

hours box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable EstimatedName and title per officer and a director/trustee) compensation from compensation from amount of other
week the organization related organizations compensation

(list any (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
hours organization
for and related

related organizations
organiza
- tions
below
dotted
line)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

(24)

(25)

GSub-total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 b

GTotal from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c

GTotal (add lines 1b and 1c). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d

Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable compensation2

from the organization G

Yes No

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
3on line 1a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for such individual. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for

4such individual. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
5for services rendered to the organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for such person. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

(A) (B) (C)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than2

G$100,000 of compensation from the organization

TEEA0108L  08/03/18 Form 990 (2018)BAA
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269,544.
2,556,677.

408,428.

X
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0.0.0.
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Contract bus serviceAC Transit 1600 Franklin St Oakland, CA 94612

Contract bus serviceMV Transportation Inc P.O. Box 3900 San Francisco, CA 94139

Mgmt,Cus.Ser.,mrtkgGray Bowen Scott 1211 Newell Ave Ste 200 Walnut Creek, CA 94596
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Part VIII Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue

exempt business excluded from tax
function revenue under sections
revenue 512-514

Federated campaigns. . . . . . . . . . 1 a 1 a

Membership dues . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 1 b

Fundraising events. . . . . . . . . . . . c 1 c

Related organizations . . . . . . . . . d 1 d

Government grants (contributions). . . . . e 1 e

All other contributions, gifts, grants, andf
similar amounts not included above. . . . 1 f

Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f:g $
Gh Total. Add lines 1a-1f. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Business Code

2 a

b

c

d

e

All other program service revenue. . . . f

Gg Total. Add lines 2a-2f. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Investment income (including dividends, interest and3
Gother similar amounts). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

GIncome from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds. . . .4

GRoyalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
(i) Real (ii) Personal

Gross rents. . . . . . . . . . 6 a

Less: rental expensesb

Rental income or (loss). . . . c

GNet rental income or (loss). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d
(i) Securities (ii) Other

Gross amount from sales of7 a
assets other than inventory

Less: cost or other basisb
and sales expenses. . . . . . . 

Gain or (loss). . . . . . . . c

Net gain or (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Gd

Gross income from fundraising events8 a
(not including $
of contributions reported on line 1c).

See Part IV, line 18 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a

Less: direct expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b b

GNet income or (loss) from fundraising events. . . . . . . . . . c

Gross income from gaming activities.9 a
See Part IV, line 19 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a

Less: direct expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b b

GNet income or (loss) from gaming activities. . . . . . . . . . . c

Gross sales of inventory, less returns10a
and allowances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a

Less: cost of goods sold. . . . . . . . . . . . b b

GNet income or (loss) from sales of inventory . . . . . . . . . . c
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code

11a

b

c

All other revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d

Ge Total. Add lines 11a-11d. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

G12 Total revenue. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

TEEA0109L   08/03/18BAA Form 990 (2018)
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547,397.

547,397.

3,476,248. 3,476,248.
340,000. 340,000.
98,549. 98,549.
92,278. 92,278.
67,176. 67,176.
52,105. 52,105.

4,126,356.

2,092. 2,092.

4,675,845. 4,128,448. 0. 0.

PBID proceeds
West Berkeley shuttle
Direct billed revenue
Paratransit services
Watergate express route

WKS



Form 990 (2018) Page 10

Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(D)(C)(A) (B)
Do not include amounts reported on lines Total expenses FundraisingManagement andProgram service
6b, 7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part  VIII. expensesgeneral expensesexpenses

Grants and other assistance to domestic1
organizations and domestic governments.
See Part IV, line 21. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Grants and other assistance to domestic2
individuals. See Part IV, line 22. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Grants and other assistance to foreign3
organizations, foreign governments, and for-
eign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16

Benefits paid to or for members. . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
Compensation of current officers, directors,5
trustees, and key employees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Compensation not included above, to6
disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)) and persons described
in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other salaries and wages. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Pension plan accruals and contributions8
(include section 401(k) and 403(b)
employer contributions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other employee benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

Payroll taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

Fees for services (non-employees):11

Management . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a

Legal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

Accounting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c

Lobbying . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d

Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17. . . e

Investment management fees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . f

g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O.). . . . . 
Advertising and promotion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12

Office expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13

Information technology. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14

Royalties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16

Travel. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17

Payments of travel or entertainment18
expenses for any federal, state, or local
public officials . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Conferences, conventions, and meetings . . . . 19

Interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20

Payments to affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. . . . 22

Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23
Other expenses. Itemize expenses not24
covered above (List miscellaneous expenses
in line 24e. If line 24e amount exceeds 10%
of line 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e
expenses on Schedule O.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

a

b

c

d

All other expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e. . . . 

Joint costs. Complete this line only if26
the organization reported in column (B)
joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation.

if followingCheck here G
SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

BAA Form 990 (2018)TEEA0110L  08/03/18
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0. 0. 0. 0.

362,347. 362,347.
7,884. 7,884.

29,900. 29,900.

5,298. 5,298.

157,466. 157,466.

53,958. 53,958.

625,288. 625,288.
11,871. 11,871.

3,081,949. 3,081,949.
126,172. 126,172.
72,224. 72,224.
4,022. 4,022.
754. 754.

4,539,133. 4,539,133. 0. 0.
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Yard site development & reloca

Book value of disposed assets

Printing and Publications
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Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year

Cash ' non-interest-bearing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1

Savings and temporary cash investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2

Pledges and grants receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3

Accounts receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 4

Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,5
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Part II of Schedule L . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under6
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees'
beneficiary organizations (see instructions). Complete Part II of Schedule L. . . . . . 6

Notes and loans receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 7

Inventories for sale or use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 8

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 9

Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other basis.10a
Complete Part VI of Schedule D. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10a

Less: accumulated depreciation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 10b 10 c

Investments ' publicly traded securities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 11

Investments ' other securities. See Part IV, line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 12

Investments ' program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 13

Intangible assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 14

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 15

Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 16

Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 17

Grants payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 18

Deferred revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 19

Tax-exempt bond liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 20

Escrow  or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D. . . . . . . . . . . 21 21

Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,22
key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons.
Complete Part II of Schedule L. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 23

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 24

Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third parties,25
and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of Schedule D. 25

Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 26

and completeOrganizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here G

lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.

Unrestricted net assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 27

Temporarily restricted net assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 28

Permanently restricted net assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 29

Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here G

and complete lines 30 through 34.

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 30

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 31

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . . . . . . . . . . . . 32 32

Total net assets or fund balances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 33

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34 34
TEEA0111L   08/03/18 Form 990 (2018)BAA
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54,876. 16,641.
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2,707,138. 1,517,569. 1,434,775.
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Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A)). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 4

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 5

Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 6

Investment expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 7

Prior period adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 8

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 9

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,10
column (B)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Yes No

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: Cash Accrual Other1

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked 'Other,' explain
in Schedule O.

Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 a 2 a

If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2 b

If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

c If 'Yes' to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 c

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain
in Schedule O.
As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single3 a
Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 a

If 'Yes,' did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required auditb
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 b

TEEA0112L   08/03/18 Form 990 (2018)BAA
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OMB No. 1545-0047
Supplemental Financial StatementsSCHEDULE D

(Form 990) G Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, 2018
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

G Attach to Form 990. Open to PublicDepartment of the Treasury G Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.Internal Revenue Service Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.Part I
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year). . . . . . . 2

Aggregate value of grants from (during year). . . . . . . . . . 3

Aggregate value at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
Yes Noare the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

Yes Noimpermissible private benefit? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Part II Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).1

Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area

Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure

Preservation of open space

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the
last day of the tax year.

Held at the End of the Tax Year

Total number of conservation easements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 2 a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2 b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 2 c

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic
2 dstructure listed in the National Register. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the3
tax year G

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located G

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations,5
Yes Noand enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year6
G

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year7
G$

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)
Yes Noand section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for
conservation easements.

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.Part III
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1 a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide,
in Part XIII, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the
following amounts relating to these items:

$GRevenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (i)

$GAssets included in Form 990, Part X. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (ii)

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following
amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

$GRevenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a

$GAssets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

TEEA3301L   10/10/18BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2018

Emeryville Transportation
Management Association 94-3244359
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Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)Part III

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection
items (check all that apply):

Public exhibition Loan or exchange programsa d

Scholarly research Otherb e

Preservation for future generationsc

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in
Part XIII.

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
Yes Noto be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV,Part IV
line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1 a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
Yes Noon Form 990, Part X? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table:b

Amount

Beginning balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 1 c

Additions during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 1 d

Distributions during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e 1 e

Ending balance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . f 1 f

Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?. . . . . 2 a Yes No

If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

Part V Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back

Beginning of year balance. . . . . . 1 a

Contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

c Net investment earnings, gains,
and losses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Grants or scholarships . . . . . . . . . d

e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Administrative expenses. . . . . . . . f

End of year balance. . . . . . . . . . . . g

Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:2

%Board designated or quasi-endowment  Ga

%Permanent endowment  Gb

%Temporarily restricted endowment Gc

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.

3 a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
Yes Noorganization by:

unrelated organizations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (i) 3a(i)

related organizations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (ii) 3a(ii)

If 'Yes' on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 3b

Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.4

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (d) Book value(a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated
(investment) basis (other) depreciation

Land. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 a

Buildings. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

Leasehold improvements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c

Equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e

GTotal. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Schedule D (Form 990) 2018BAA

TEEA3302L   10/10/18

Emeryville Transportation 94-3244359

4,141,913. 2,707,138. 1,434,775.

1,434,775.



Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Page 3

Part VII Investments ' Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(b) Book value(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(2) Closely-held equity interests. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(3) Other

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(I)

GTotal. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 12.) . . . 

Investments ' Program Related.Part VIII
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

GTotal. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X,  column (B) line 13.). . . 

Other Assets.Part IX
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

GTotal.  (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 15.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other Liabilities.Part X
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

(a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

GTotal. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 25.). . . . . . 

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the organization's liability for uncertain

tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

TEEA3303L   10/10/18BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2018

94-3244359Emeryville Transportation
N/A

N/A

N/A



Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Page 4

Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:2

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 2 a

b Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 b

Recoveries of prior year grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 2 c

d Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 d

e Add lines 2a through 2d. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 e

Subtract line 2e from line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3

Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:4

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 4 a

Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 4 b

c Add lines 4a and 4b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 c

5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Part XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:2

Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 2 a

Prior year adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2 b

c Other losses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 c

Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 2 d

e Add lines 2a through 2d. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 e

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 a

b Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 b

c Add lines 4a and 4b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 c

5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Supplemental Information.Part XIII

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V,
line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2018

TEEA3304L   10/10/18

Emeryville Transportation 94-3244359

4,675,845.

4,675,845.

4,675,845.

4,539,133.

4,539,133.

4,539,133.



OMB No. 1545-0047Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZSCHEDULE O
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2018Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

G Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.
Open to Public

Department of the Treasury G Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. InspectionInternal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

TEEA4901L   10/10/18 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018)BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

94-3244359
Emeryville Transportation
Management Association

Form 990, Part VI, Line 1a - Explanation of Material Differences of Voting Rights

No Material differences. See explation in 7a below

Form 990, Part VI, Line 3 - Description of Delegated Duties to Management Company

The non-profit has no employees.

Control over the non-profit is contracted to a management service company Gray-Bowen

-Scott, Inc.  The firm provides operational, administrative and strategic management

for the TMA's programs and services. Their Associate Professional employee reports

directly to the Board of Directors.

Direct services (i.e., labor, maintenance, etc. for bus operations) are provided by

separate contractors.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 7a - How Members or Shareholders Elect Governing Body

The Corporation shall have four classes of members (b

Form 990, Part VI, Line 9 - Officer, Director, Trustee, Key Employee Mailing Address

Chair Tim Bacon, 170 Grant Ave 6th Floor, San Francisco CA 94108

Vice Chair Geoffrey Sears, 1120 Nye St Ste 400, San Rafael CA 94108

Secretary Betsy Cooley, 3 Admiral Dr #458, Emeryville CA 94608

Treasurer Andrew Allen, 83 Beach Rd, Belvedar CA 94920

Form 990, Part VI, Line 11b - Form 990 Review Process

Meeting with CPA and Board committee.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 12c - Explanation of Monitoring and Enforcement of Conflicts

Conflict of interest policy is reviewed by each board member and acknowledged that

there is no conflicts of interest annuity.
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

BAA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018)

TEEA4902L   10/10/18

94-3244359
Emeryville Transportation
Management Association

Form 990, Part VI, Line 19 - Other Organization Documents Publicly Available

Available upon request.



Voucher at bottom of page.

DO NOT MAIL A PAPER COPY OF THE CORPORATE OR EXEMPT ORGANIZATION
TAX RETURN WITH THE PAYMENT VOUCHER.

If the amount of payment is zero, do not mail this voucher.

Using black or blue ink, make check or money order payable to theWHERE TO FILE:
'Franchise Tax Board.' Write the corporation number, FEIN, CA SOS file
number and '2018 FTB 3586' on the check or money order. Detach
voucher below. Enclose, but do not staple, payment with voucher and
mail to:

FRANCHISE TAX BOARD
PO BOX 942857
SACRAMENTO CA 94257-0531

Make all checks or money orders payable in U.S. dollars and drawn against a U.S. financial institution.

WHEN TO FILE: Corporations ' File and Pay by the 15th day of the 4th month following the
close of the taxable year.

S corporations ' File and Pay by the 15th day of the 3rd month following the
close of the taxable year.

Exempt organizations ' File and Pay by the 15th day of the 5th month following
the close of the taxable year.

When the due date falls on a weekend or holiday, the deadline to file and pay without penalty is extended
to the next business day.

ONLINE SERVICES: Corporations can make payments online using Web Pay for Businesses. Corporations
can make an immediate payment or schedule payments up to a year in advance. Go
to ftb.ca.gov/pay for more information.

IF NO PAYMENT IS DUE, DO NOT MAIL THIS VOUCHERDETACH HERE DETACH HERE

CAUTION: You may be required to pay electronically, see instructions.

TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORMPayment Voucher for Corporations and
2018 3586 (e-file)Exempt Organizations e-filed Returns

6181186 FTB 3586 2018CACA1201L  12/12/18059

1970886 EMER 94-3244359 000000000000 18 FORM 3
TYB 01-01-18 TYE 12-31-18
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION
VERONICA HATTRUP
1211 NEWELL AVE SUITE 200
WALNUT CREEK CA 94596

510 451-3862
AMOUNT OF PAYMENT 10.



TAXABLE YEAR FORM
California Exempt Organization

2018 199Annual Information Return
Calendar Year 2018 or fiscal year beginning (mm/dd/yyyy) , and ending (mm/dd/yyyy) .
Corporation/Organization name California corporation number

Additional information. See instructions. FEIN

Street address (suite or room) PMB no.

City State Zip code

Foreign country name Foreign province/state/county Foreign postal code

J If exempt under R&TC Section 23701d, has theFirst Return. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes NoA
organization engaged in political activities?

B Amended Return . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No@ See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @ Yes No
IRC Section 4947(a)(1) trust. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes NoC

D Final Information Return?
K Is the organization exempt under R&TC Section 23701g?. . . @ Yes No@ Dissolved Surrendered (Withdrawn) Merged/Reorganized

If 'Yes,' enter the gross receipts from
@Enter date: (mm/dd/yyyy) $nonmember sources . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Check accounting method:E If organization is a public charity exempt underL
Cash Accrual Other1 2 3 R&TC Section 23701d and meets the filing fee

exception, check box. No filing fee is required. . . . . . . . . . . @@ @ @Federal return filed? 990T 990-PF Sch H (990)1 2 3F

Other 990 series M4 Is the organization a Limited Liability Company?. . . . . . . . . @ Yes No
@Is this a group filing? See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes NoG Did the organization file Form 100 or Form 109 to reportN

taxable income?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @ Yes No
H Is this organization in a group exemption . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Is the organization under audit by the IRS or has the IRSOYes No

audited in a prior year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . If 'Yes,' what is the parent's name? @ Yes No

Is federal Form 1023/1024 pending? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . P Yes No
Did the organization have any changes to its guidelinesI Date filed with IRS
not reported to the FTB? See instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No@

Complete Part I unless not required to file this form. See General Information B and C.Part I
1Gross sales or receipts from other sources. From Side 2, Part II, line 8. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @1

2Gross dues and assessments from members and affiliates. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @2
Receipts 3Gross contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @3

and
Revenues Total gross receipts for filing requirement test. Add line 1 through line 3.4

4This line must be completed. If the result is less than $50,000, see General Information B. . . @
5Cost of goods sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @5

66 Cost or other basis, and sales expenses of assets sold . . . . . . . @
7Total costs. Add line 5 and line 6. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Total gross income. Subtract line 7 from line 4. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @8 8

9Total expenses and disbursements. From Side 2, Part II, line 18 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @9
Expenses

10Excess of receipts over expenses and disbursements. Subtract line 9 from line 8. . . . . . . . . . . . @10
1111 Total payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @
1212 Use tax. See General Information K. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @
1313 Payments balance. If line 11 is more than line 12, subtract line 12 from line 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . . @
1414 Use tax balance. If line 12 is more than line 11, subtract line 11 from line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @Filing

Fee 1515 Filing fee $10 or $25. See General Information F. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

1616 Penalties and Interest. See General Information J. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17>Balance due. Add line 12, line 15, and line 16. Then subtract line 11 from the result . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true,
Sign correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than taxpayer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Title DateHere Telephone@SignatureGof officer

Date PTINCheck if @
Preparer's self-Gsignature employed GPaid

Firm's FEIN@Preparer's
Firm's nameUse Only (or yours, if G
self-employed)

Telephoneand address @

May the FTB discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @ Yes No

CACA1112L   12/13/18 3651184 Form 199  2018   Side 1059

EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 1970886

94-3244359

1211 NEWELL AVE SUITE 200

WALNUT CREEK CA 94596

X

X

X
N/A
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

4,128,448.

547,397.

4,675,845.

4,675,845.
4,539,133.

136,712.

10.

10.

CHAIRMAN 510 451-3862

XJOHN TOUNGER CPA 4/13/19 P01265219
JOHN S. TOUNGER CPA
585 MANDANA BLVD STE 10 68-0166029
OAKLAND, CA 94610-2270

(510) 893-0950
X



Organizations with gross receipts of more than $50,000 and private foundationsPart II
regardless of amount of gross receipts ' complete Part II or furnish substitute information.

1Gross sales or receipts from all business activities. See instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @1

2Interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @2

3Dividends. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @3
Receipts

4Gross rents. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @4from
Other 5Gross royalties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @5
Sources

6Gross amount received from sale of assets (See Instructions). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @6

7Other income. Attach schedule. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @7

8Total gross sales or receipts from other sources. Add line 1 through line 7. Enter here and on Side 1, Part I, line 1 . . . . . . 8

Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts paid. Attach schedule. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @9 9

Disbursements to or for members. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @ 1010

Compensation of officers, directors, and trustees. Attach schedule . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @ 1111

Other salaries and wages. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @12 12
Expenses Interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @ 1313and
Disburse- Taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @ 1414
ments Rents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @ 1515

Depreciation and depletion (See instructions). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @16 16

17Other Expenses and Disbursements. Attach schedule. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . @17

18Total expenses and disbursements. Add line 9 through line 17. Enter here and on Side 1, Part I, line 9 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18

Balance Sheet Beginning of taxable year End of taxable yearSchedule L
(a) (b) (c) (d)Assets

@Cash. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
@Net accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
@Net notes receivable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
@Inventories. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
@Federal and state government obligations . . . . . . . . . . 5
@Investments in other bonds. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
@Investments in stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
@Mortgage loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
@Other investments. Attach schedule. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10a Depreciable assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b Less accumulated depreciation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

@Land. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
@Other assets. Attach schedule. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12

13 Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Liabilities and net worth
@Accounts payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
@Contributions, gifts, or grants payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
@Bonds and notes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16
@Mortgages payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17

Other liabilities. Attach schedule. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18
@Capital stock or principal fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19
@Paid-in or capital surplus. Attach reconciliation. . . . . . 20
@Retained earnings or income fund. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21

Total liabilities and net worth . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

Reconciliation of income per books with income per returnSchedule M-1
Do not complete this schedule if the amount on Schedule L, line 13, column (d), is less than $50,000.

@Net income per books. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Income recorded on books this year not included1 7
@ @Federal income tax. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . in this return. Attach schedule. . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
@ Deductions in this return not charged8Excess of capital losses over capital gains. . . . . . . . . 3

against book income this year.Income not recorded on books this year.4
@ @Attach schedule. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Attach schedule. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total. Add line 7 and line 8. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9Expenses recorded on books this year not deducted5
@ 10 Net income per return.in this return. Attach schedule . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Subtract line 9 from line 6. . . . . . . . . . Total. Add line 1 through line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
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4,128,448.
4,128,448.

0.

53,958.

157,466.
625,288.

3,702,421.
4,539,133.

1,995,247. 2,659,113.
85,507. 82,056.

4,005,499. 4,141,913.
2,487,930. 1,517,569. 2,707,138. 1,434,775.

4,759. 5,337.
3,603,082. 4,181,281.

258,160. 461,119.

862,604. 1,101,132.

2,482,318. 2,619,030.

3,603,082. 4,181,281.

136,712.

136,712. 136,712.

SEE STATEMENT 1

SEE STMT 2

SEE STATEMENT 3

STM 4



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

OFFICE EQ 7/01/2001 680. S/L

TOOL SET 4/24/2002 247. S/L
BATTERY CHARGER 4/24/2002 294. S/L
FENCE 9/17/2002 22,389. S/L
STORAGE CONTAIN 9/04/2002 2,723. S/L

680.

247.
294.

20,151.
2,723.

5

5
5

10
10

625,288.

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

GENERATOR 9/04/2002 1,000. S/L

2 USED WORKSTAT 11/13/2002 3,311. S/L
FURNITURE 9/25/2002 697. S/L
FURNITURE 9/04/2002 2,726. S/L
PRESSURE WASHER 10/03/2002 424. S/L

1,000.

3,311.
697.

2,726.
424.

5

5
5
5
5

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

LAPTOP FOR MAIN 4/05/2002 432. S/L

THOMAS BUS #103 1/10/2003 132,506. S/L
FENCE 1/03/2003 15,578. S/L
SECURITY EQUIPM 2/06/2003 14,868. S/L
LEASEHOLD IMPRO 9/30/2002 20,241. S/L

432.

132,506.
14,022.
13,907.
7,717. 127.

5

5
10
5

40

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

LEASEHOLD IMPRO 6/11/2003 5,668. S/L

SECURITY EQ 8/24/2006 2,785. S/L
PASSENGER COUNT 4/28/2006 8,995. S/L
PASSENGER COUNT 9/15/2005 3,370. S/L
SECURITY EQ ADD VARIOUS 16,171. S/L

2,071.

2,785.
8,995.
3,370.

14,553.
35.40

5
5
5
5

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

7621184 FTB 3885 2018CACA3501L  12/07/18 059

FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

SECURITY CAMERA 8/09/2007 2,920. S/L

NEW FENCE ADDIT 10/27/2008 5,568. S/L
NEW CHAIRS 6/06/2008 1,462. S/L
EMISSION RETROF 3/10/2008 43,752. S/L
BIKE RACKS 5/28/2008 12,239. S/L

2,920.

5,106.
1,462.

43,752.
12,239.

139.

5

10
5
5
5

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

7621184 FTB 3885 2018CACA3501L  12/07/18 059

FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

SHED POWER 5/31/2008 23,254. S/L

SAD MEDIUM BUS 12/16/2010 42,300. S/L
2007 DODGE SPRI 8/01/2009 37,964. S/L
SECURITY CAMERA 3/26/2009 5,010. S/L
NESBITT 4/09/2011 1,550. S/L

5,568.

42,300.
37,964.
5,010.
1,550.

145.40

2
5
5
3

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

SAD MEDIUM BUS 12/16/2010 42,300. S/L

2013 STARCRAFT 11/06/2012 143,226. S/L
2013 STARCRAFT 11/06/2012 143,226. S/L
2009 ELDORADO N 6/10/2011 293,482. S/L
2007 ELDORADO N 3/20/2011 192,798. S/L

42,300.

107,952.
107,952.
293,482.
192,798.

20,461.
20,461.

2

7
7
5
5

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

7621184 FTB 3885 2018CACA3501L  12/07/18 059

FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

2008 INTL HC #1 2/15/2012 31,523. S/L

2014 STARCRAFT 10/14/2013 149,504. S/L
2014 STARCRAFT 10/14/2013 149,504. S/L
FENCE-LANDSCAPI 1/05/2009 6,655. S/L
FENCE 1/23/2009 10,932. S/L

31,523.

127,079.
127,079.

5,994.
9,746. 273.

22,425.
22,425.

166.

3

5
5

10
10

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

7621184 FTB 3885 2018CACA3501L  12/07/18 059

FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

2014 STARCRAFT 10/14/2013 149,504. S/L

2014 STARCRAFT 9/11/2014 157,737. S/L
LEASEHOLD IMPRO 9/01/2013 14,996. S/L
HYBRID RESIDUAL 12/10/2013 18,322. S/L
2014 STARCRAFT 10/14/2013 149,504. S/L

127,079.

105,157.
6,500.

18,322.
127,079.

22,425.
22,425.

31,547.
375.

5

5
10
3
5

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

7621184 FTB 3885 2018CACA3501L  12/07/18 059

FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

2014 STARCRAFT 9/11/2014 157,737. S/L

2016 STARCRAFT 8/02/2016 140,678. S/L
2015 STARCRAFT# 6/01/2015 141,026. S/L
2015 STARCRAFT# 6/01/2015 141,026. S/L
2015 STARCRAFT# 6/01/2015 141,026. S/L

105,157.

39,859.
72,863.
72,863.
72,863.

31,547.
28,205.

28,136.
28,205.
28,205.

5

5
5
5
5

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

7621184 FTB 3885 2018CACA3501L  12/07/18 059

FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

2016 STARTCRAFT 8/02/2016 140,678. S/L

2016 STARCRAFT 3/28/2016 148,895. S/L
2016 STARCRAFT 3/28/2016 148,895. S/L
2016 STARCRAFT 3/28/2016 148,895. S/L
2016 STARCRAFT 8/02/2016 140,678. S/L

39,859.

52,113.
52,113.
52,113.
39,859.

28,136.
28,136.

29,779.
29,779.
29,779.

5

5
5
5
5

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

7621184 FTB 3885 2018CACA3501L  12/07/18 059

FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

2017 STARCRAFT 4/01/2017 150,542. S/L

2018 INTERNATIO 5/03/2018 153,055. S/L
2018 INTERNATIO 5/03/2018 153,055. S/L
2017 STARCRAFT 4/01/2017 150,542. S/L
2017 STARCRAFT 4/01/2017 150,542. S/L

22,581.

22,581.
22,581.

30,108.
30,108.

20,407.
20,407.
30,108.

5

5
5
5
5

$200,000

$25,000



TAXABLE YEAR CALIFORNIA FORM

Corporation Depreciation and Amortization2018 3885
Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.
Corporation name California corporation number

Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179Part I
1 1Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

7 7Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 12IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 13Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12. . . . . . . . 

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356Part II

14 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Description Date acquired Cost or Depreciation Life or Depreciation for Additional firstDepreciation
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis allowed or rate this year yearmethod

allowable in depreciation
earlier years

15 Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed
15$2,000. See instructions for line 14, column (h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

SummaryPart III
16 Total: If the corporation is electing:

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or

16Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17 17Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation amounts are used to determine net income before

18state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment is necessary.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

AmortizationPart IV
(d) (e) (f) (g)19 (a) (b) (c)

Description Date acquired Cost or Period orAmortization R&TC Amortization
of property (mm/dd/yyyy) other basis percentageallowed or allowable section for this year

in earlier years (see instr)

20 20Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 21Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

22 Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or
Form 100W, Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or

22Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

7621184 FTB 3885 2018CACA3501L  12/07/18 059

FORM 199

1970886
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

2018 INTERNATIO 5/03/2018 153,055. S/L
2018 INTERNATIO 5/03/2018 153,055. S/L

20,407.
20,407.

5
5

$200,000

$25,000



2018 California Statements Page 1
Emeryville Transportation
Management Association 94-3244359

Statement 1
Form 199, Part II, Line 7
Other Income

Other Investment Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,092.
Program Service Revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,126,356.

Total $ 4,128,448.

Statement 2
Form 199, Part II, Line 11
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees and Key Employees

Current Officers:
Title and Total Contri- Expense

Average Hours Compen- bution to Account/
Name and Address Per Week Devoted sation EBP & DC Other

Geoffrey Sears Vice Chair $ 0. $ 0. $ 0.
1120 Nye St Ste 400 2.00
San Rafael, CA 94903

Tim Bacon Chairman 0. 0. 0.
170 Grant Ave 6th Floor 1.00
San Francisco, CA 94108

Bobby Lee Director 0. 0. 0.
1558 Brunswig Lane 1.00
Emeryville, CA 94608

Andrew Allen Treasurer 0. 0. 0.
83 Beach Road 1.00
Belveder, CA 94920

Ron Silberman Director 0. 0. 0.
5835 Doyle Street #101 1.00
Emeryville, CA 94608

Peter Schreiber- Pixar Director 0. 0. 0.
1200 Park Ave 1.00
Emeryville, CA 94608

Betsy Cooley Secretary 0. 0. 0.
3 Admiral Drive #458 1.00
Emeryville, CA 94608

Max Frankel Director 0. 0. 0.
5616 Bay Street 1.00
Emeryville, CA 94608

Colin Osborne Director 0. 0. 0.
5300 Chron Way 1.00
Emeryville, CA 94608

Total $ 0. $ 0. $ 0.



2018 California Statements Page 2
Emeryville Transportation
Management Association 94-3244359

Statement 3
Form 199, Part II, Line 17
Other Expenses

Accounting Fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 29,900.
Book value of disposed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72,224.
Bus shuttle operating costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,081,949.
City taxes and fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 754.
Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,871.
Legal Fees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,884.
Management fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 362,347.
Office Expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,298.
Printing and Publications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,022.
Yard site development & reloca. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 126,172.

Total $ 3,702,421.

Statement 4
Form 199, Schedule L, Line 12
Other Assets

Prepaid Expenses and Deferred Charges. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,336.
Rounding. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.

Total $ 5,337.
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